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Financial Results and Business Review

| would like to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2017. During the year, the Group recorded a profit from operations
before valuation changes in investment properties of HK$549.0 million
(2016: HK$552.4 million) and a loss attributable to equity shareholders of
HK$159.1 million (2016: a profit of HK$871.4 million). The loss was mainly
due to the net valuation losses on investment properties of HK$614.9 million
(2016: net valuation gains of HK$412.3 million) which outweigh the profit
from operations. The valuation changes will only affect the accounting profit
or loss but not the cash flow of the Group. Details of the financial results and
business performance and development are set out in the Directors’ Report

on pages 51 to 67.

Dividends

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.60 per share
for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$0.60 per share). As the
Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.60 per share during the year
(2016: HK$0.60 per share), the total distribution will be HK$1.20 per share
for the year (2016: HK$1.20 per share).

Annual General Meeting
The annual general meeting of members of the Company will be held on

Tuesday, 12 September 2017.

Acknowledgement
Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion
and dedication, and would like to thank our professional advisors and our

members for their support in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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ISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This complex
provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping podium,

cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant new hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat digital IMAX
theatre. ISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholdersNete and
is therefore committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. To accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices
and procedures, and identified and formalised appropriate measures and

policies.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Company complied
with all the code provisions, where applicable, set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing

Rules”), except for the deviations as disclosed hereunder:

Code Provision A.1.8: Appropriate insurance cover

in respect of legal action against directors should be
arranged

Currently, the Company does not have insurance cover for legal action
against its Directors. The Board believes that with the current risk
management and internal control systems and the close supervision of the
management, the Directors’ risk of being sued or getting involved in litigation
in their capacity as Directors is relatively low. Benefits to be derived from
taking out insurance may not outweigh the cost. Despite it, every Director is,
subject to the provisions of the applicable laws, indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and liabilities
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company. In view of the above, the Board considers that the Directors’

exposure to risk is manageable.

Note: “shareholder” shall have the same meaning as that ascribed to “member” under
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance”) throughout this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision A.2.1: The roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and performed by two
individuals

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive of the
Company. To avoid concentration of power and authority in any one
individual, day-to-day management of the Company’s business is shared by
Executive Directors whilst formulation of objectives and strategic decisions
are collectively made by the Board. In addition, the Board comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors with differing expertise/calibre who can
provide a “check and balance” effect on the management through their high
attendance at board meetings and therefore ensuring a balance of power.
Given consideration to the aforesaid, the Board of Directors is of the view
that the current structure does not have any adverse effect on the Company
and believes that this structure enables the Group to make and implement

decisions promptly and efficiently.

Code Provision B.1.5: Remuneration details of senior
management should be disclosed by band in annual
reports

The remuneration details of the senior management are not disclosed by
band in the annual report. To ensure they are remunerated at a reasonable
but not excessive rate, none of them is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration or related to the remuneration committee members (who
are authorised to collectively determine the remuneration of the senior
management based on a number of factors set out in the Company’s
remuneration policy). The Directors consider that the non-disclosure does not
pose any negative impact on the Company. On the contrary, the disclosure
of the remuneration details of the senior management may cause undue
comparison and discontent among staff members, and would unnecessarily
provide highly sensitive and confidential information to competitors and other
third parties looking to recruit the senior management. In light of the above,
the Directors are of the view that the disclosure of such information would
neither provide pertinent information in furtherance of corporate governance,

nor be in the interests of the members of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision C.2.5: Issuer should have an internal
audit function and review the need for one in case of
its absence annually

At present, the Company does not have an internal audit function. The Board
reviewed the need for setting up an internal audit function during the year
under review and considered that there was no such an immediate need
after taking into account the Group’s current circumstances, such as the
focused nature and geographical spread of business, the relatively simple
operating structure and small size of the Group and the close involvement
and supervision of the management in daily operation, which could provide
sufficient risk management and internal control for the Group. Despite it,
the Board has taken initiatives to promote the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems by creating a
control environment across the Group (such as building up a corporate
culture based on sound business ethics and accountability through the
implementation of “whistle-blowing” arrangements and procedure manuals
with defined roles, responsibilities and reporting lines) and putting control
activities in place (such as conducting group-wide risk assessment exercise
regularly). In addition, where the external auditor of the Company considers
any internal controls that are relevant to the audit of the financial statements,
it will report to the Audit Committee any significant deficiencies in internal

control identified during the audit.

In view of the above considerations and the potential cost to be involved, the
Board is of the opinion that it is not cost effective to set up and maintain an
internal audit function and that the existing control mechanism could justify
its absence for the time being. Nonetheless, the Board will review the need

for an internal audit function on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision F.1.3: The company secretary

should report to the board chairman and/or the chief
executive

Instead of reporting to the Chairman (who is also the chief executive of the
Company), the company secretary reports directly to the deputy chairman.
Since the company secretary is located in the same office as the deputy
chairman and they work closely on a day-to-day basis, direct reporting
to the deputy chairman can provide for a prompt and timely response to
issues which require immediate attention. On the other hand, the Chairman
keeps having ongoing discussion and dialogue with the deputy chairman
on business affairs, in particular corporate governance and financial issues,
which enables him to fully understand the operation of the Company and
manage it in an effective manner. Taking into account of the above, the

Board considers that the current reporting line is apposite to the Company.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its code for dealing in securities in the Company by its Directors (“Model
Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors of the Company
as to whether they have complied with or whether there has been any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

financial year ended 31 March 2017.
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2017

comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Lee Chung

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive of the
Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and Mr Cheong
Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter of
Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the Directors who are

members of the Cheong family together own businesses outside the Group.

Under the corporate governance structure, the Board of Directors is as
a whole accountable to the shareholders of the Company in respect of
the Group’s performance. The Board of Directors is responsible for the
leadership and control of the Group, which include formulation of objectives,
overall strategies and business plans; and overseeing the financial and
management performance, corporate governance, risk management and

internal control systems of the Group.
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#ERME Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continued)

With the objective of focusing more attentively on specific areas, the
Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. Non-executive
Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) are invited
to serve on these Board committees according to the benefits brought by
their participation in view of their individual experience and skills. To assist
the committees in discharging their roles adequately, each committee is
provided with a committee policy, setting out guidelines for its members to
follow in the process of decision-making. Duties and authorities of these
committees are also set out in their respective terms of reference. To keep
the Board fully informed of their works and findings, these committees are

required to report to the Board on a regular basis.

For the purpose of efficient operation, the Board relies on the management
for the day-to-day operation of the Group’s business. The management has
to implement the objectives, strategies and plans adopted by the Board
and report to the Board regularly. The Board monitors the work of the
management whilst the management provides an indispensable support to
the operation of the Board and the Group’s development. Given the close
collaboration between the Board and the management, the duties, power
and functions of the Board and the management are clearly laid down and

defined in writing.

Delegating its functions and authorities to the Board committees and the
management does not absolve the Board from its overall responsibility for
the governance of the Group. The Board at all times assumes the ultimate

responsibility for the Group’s management and operation.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which give a
true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the
Group. In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 on a going concern basis, the
Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and, other than the
revised accounting policies which are first effective for the year under review as
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, applied them consistently
with those applied to the financial statements of the previous financial
year. The Directors have also made judgements and estimates which are

reasonable.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group. The statement of the Auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 72 to 78.

Six board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, and one
general meeting were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2017.
Individual attendance of the Directors is set out below:

HEEBIAY FERUEERRH
Meetings attended/eligible to attend

Ezgg BRERRE

= Directors Board Meetings General Meeting
HITEF Executive Directors

EEE LA (FE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 6/6 1/1
BRI (FIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 6/6 11
sEE S A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 6/6 1/1
SEAAF SO Mr Cheong Sim Lam 6/6 1/1
$EIRIS/NMA Miss Cheong Chong Ling 6/6 1/1
HHTEE Non-executive Director

GRAERE A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 6/6 11
B HHTTESE Independent Non-executive Directors

BEaEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 6/6 1/1
=Bt Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 6/6 1/1
TS Mr Lee Chung 6/6 1/1

REEFAERTEACHAUTHOMBMEEE -
ARREEEERE - RAFE - ARBRERR
BESRHTERTERBL WERENEE
ERERNMETEEENANE - AESESEE
R EZEZEMERERTEORHER - &
AMETEARTENERNBEREMERALR
EESRUEHFNEN RBE-_ZT—tF=A
=t BULMBEE  ARAAEELHEES
BEMETAMZAREIRE  IRIEES
FEXNBIIEERH - ARABEEFFTS
EARRMIMEEIIEE A E  REBNFR
g EFAARRBRENERT ARG
FrEHRRER -

To enable the Directors to maintain the necessary knowledge and skills to
perform their roles, the Company places an emphasis on Directors’ training.
During the year under review, all Directors were furnished with quarterly
memoranda/circulars so as to regularly refresh their knowledge relating to
legal and regulatory obligations. To keep the Directors abreast of the latest
developments regarding regulatory and legal requirements, the company
secretary also provided updates directly or through other professionals
to the Board as and when necessary. During the financial year ended
31 March 2017, the Company organised in-house training courses in relation
to Directors’ duties and responsibilities for the Directors and reviewed the
adequacy of training received by them. The Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant external training sessions, seminars, forums and conferences
on their own with all related expenses reimbursable by the Company, subject
to the Company’s policy.
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Board of Directors (continued)

2017 is set out below:

Training received by the Directors during the financial year ended 31 March

RHARWE
HERRE HMTBAR
=P BEAL
ek = HEER AR
Receiving
briefings
Attending from company
courses/ secretary/
seminars/ Reading  other executives/
- Directors conferences materials professionals
HITEF Executive Directors
BRI S () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) N N
BN E(FERE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) N N
B A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi N N
2 EodEabtaa Mr Cheong Sim Lam N J
RIS/ A Miss Cheong Chong Ling N J
FHITEE Non-executive Director
AR Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles N N
B HHTTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
AEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul N N
=Bk AE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam N N
FIRFE Mr Lee Chung J N

i bRPFRRAVIEIIIGENDEER

QEFBEMNEEHEH -

(2) 16451 2 #53 BIlFD

Note: The above-mentioned training is relevant to (1) corporate governance, (2) rules

and regulations and (3) Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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Non-executive Director and

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Director is appointed for a term of one year whilst
Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

remain eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each Independent Non-
executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
Independent Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the audit committee, each
with its written terms of reference. Each committee is required to report
back to the Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and
recommendations unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on its

ability to do so.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain
Directors and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at a competitive
level. In order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration
committee. Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no Director or his/her
associates are allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his/her own

remuneration.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and one Non-executive Director. They are Mr Chow
Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Yau
Allen Lee-nam and Mr Lee Chung. The main duties of the remuneration
committee are to review and make recommendations to the Board on the
terms of reference of the committee; to assist the Company in formulating
remuneration policy and structure for Directors and senior management;
to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals; to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and senior management; to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors; to consider salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; to review and approve
compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment; and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors
for misconduct. Details of the remuneration committee’s authority and
duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are
published on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and

Clearing Limited (“HKEX”).

Remuneration of individual Executive Directors and senior management is
determined, with delegated responsibility, by the remuneration committee on
the recommendations of the chief executive (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong
whose remuneration package is determined by the remuneration committee
alone) on an annual basis. The remuneration committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the review of remuneration of Non-
executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors annually. For all
other staff, it is the Executive Directors who fix their remuneration packages
on the recommendations of their respective department heads on an annual

basis.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the Directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the Directors. When determining the remuneration
packages of senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and Executive Directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market conditions, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 25 to the financial
statements on page 135, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the remuneration committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and the terms of reference
of the committee; considered and fixed the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and senior management; and made recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of both the Non-executive Director and

Independent Non-executive Directors.

The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out

below:
HEEBNE FEREEEINH
RE Members Meetings attended/eligible to attend
RAESEE(ZESEE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3
AR Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3
PEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
=N Mr Lee Chung 3/3
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors. The members are Mr Cheong
Hooi Hong (committee chairman), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Chow Wan

Hoi, Paul, Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam and Mr Lee Chung.

The main duties of the nomination committee are to review and provide
recommendations to the Board on the nomination policy, terms of reference
of the committee and the Board diversity policy; to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to assess the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors; to assess the mix
in terms of gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive, and on the
need of setting measurable objectives for implementing the Board diversity
policy. Details of the nomination committee’s authority and duties are set out
in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are published on the

websites of the Company and the HKEx.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the nomination committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the nomination policy, the terms of reference of the committee, the Board
diversity policy, the need of setting measurable objectives for implementing
the Board diversity policy and the necessary mix required on the Board;
made recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and composition
of the Board; assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors; and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointments
of the Independent Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Director and

Directors who were subject to retirement by rotation.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

On making recommendations to the Board for re-appointment of a
Director, the nomination committee needs to consider not only the skills
and experience of the Director concerned, but also his/her value to the
Company, so as to ensure that there is a balanced composition of the
Board. Board diversity is a key consideration in Board selection process. For
the Company, it is more than an issue of gender, it also focuses on age and
professional experience. Selection of female candidates or candidates of a
particular age group or qualifications to join the Board is, in part, dependent
on the pool of candidates possessing necessary skills, knowledge and
experience. Board appointment is mainly based on merit and contribution
likely brought by the chosen candidates. The Company believes that, with
the benefits of diversity, it can have a better understanding to the needs and

expectations of its stakeholders, in particular shoppers and tenants.

To reflect the above, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy, in
which the nomination committee is required to assess the mix in terms of
gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; and to recommend to
the Board any matters in relation to Board diversity or implementation of the

policy.

Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does not
intend to fix a diversity quota for Board appointment or set a short term
objective on gender diversity, for such policies may compromise on the

calibre of Directors.

The process for re-election of a Director is set out in the Company’s Articles
of Association, which requires that (i) every Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and a retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election; and (i) Directors who are appointed by the
Board as an addition to the Board shall retire at the next annual general
meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual vacancies shall retire at the next
general meeting (instead of the next annual general meeting) and Directors

S0 appointed are eligible for re-election.
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Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

ZREBELESKNERN R EZ 28T ¢ The attendance record of each nomination committee member is set out
below:
HESRAE FERLESRREY
RE Members Meetings attended/eligible to attend
BB (ZEELE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman) 3/3
EIEMRE A& Mr Cheong Kheng Lim 3/3
BAEELE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 3/3
hEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
=N Mr Lee Chung 3/3
BREEE Audit Committee
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The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are
to make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor; to approve remuneration, terms of
engagement and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of the external auditor; to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of its audit process; to
discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement
policy on engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services;
to oversee financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; to review financial information of the Group; to review
arrangements employees of the Company can use in confidence to raise
concerns about possible improprieties and ensure proper arrangements are
in place for fair and independent investigation and for follow-up action; to act
as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with
the external auditor; and to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the terms of reference of the committee. Details of the audit committee’s
authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of

reference are published on the websites of the Company and the HKEXx.

The audit committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors and the one Non-executive Director. The members are Mr Chow
Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Yau

Allen Lee-nam and Mr Lee Chung.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the audit committee met
four times and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of the external auditor; considered and approved the terms of engagement
of the external auditor for provision of interim review and audit services;
fixed the external auditor’s remuneration; reviewed the half-year and annual
financial statements of the Group, including integrity and significant financial
reporting judgements contained therein, before submission to the Board
for approval; discussed with the external auditor the nature and scope
of the audit and determined the scope and extent of the interim review
before commencement; met the external auditor without the presence of
executive board members of the Company; and considered and made
recommendations to the Board on the arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about improprieties, the audit policy, the terms of reference of the

committee and the risk management policy.

The audit committee during the year under review also reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
by monitoring the risk change during the year, assessing the adequacy of
the mitigating strategies used and the impact of the identified risks on the
Group. It also evaluated the need of setting up an internal audit function by
considering the current internal control mechanism and the pros and cons of

doing so.

BERZESKENFEER 20BN The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:
HESRAE FEELESRREY

RE Members Meetings attended/eligible to attend
EREE(ZEEESFE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 4/4
?ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂi Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 4/4
=B hE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 4/4
TISTE Mr Lee Chung 4/4
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Board Committees (continued)

Corporate governance functions

Given the importance of good corporate governance to the success of
the Company, the Board is directly responsible for performing corporate
governance duties. The duties set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG

Code are included in its terms of reference.

Among the six board meetings held during the financial year ended 31 March
2017, two of the meetings covered issues relating to corporate governance.
At the meetings, the Board reviewed and modified the general code of

conduct for employees and Directors; monitored the training and continuous

EFRERzRLRTR EREEMREER
ANBZEINBEEERR  EEREITLEE
BHERER  BREBERETERZREENR

EBARBETEEE RRETHEE T
R 2 BEEITIRG -

professional development of Directors and senior management; considered
and revised corporate governance policies and practices including those
relating to compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.

ZREEHRZMAESRSLF 2080 T ¢ Individual attendance of the Directors at the said two board meetings is set
out below:

HEEBNE FEREEEINHK
- Directors Meetings attended/eligible to attend
HITEE Executive Directors
BRI () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
BN E(FERE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
EESE Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 2/2
fopryealinlesy Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
ERIe/ N A Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2

FHITEE Non-executive Director

ek e ta Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
B HHTTEE Independent Non-executive Directors

AEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
hEFEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
=N Mr Lee Chung 2/2
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Auditor of the Company,
KPMG, provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$739,000
to the Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of
approximately HK$238,000 to the Group, which included HK$56,000 and
HK$182,000 being charges for tax services and review of the interim results

of the Group respectively.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Responsibility
The Board has an overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and

internal control systems.

To this end, the Board, assisted by the Audit Committee, oversees the
foregoing systems on an ongoing basis by evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks (including the environmental, social
and governance-related risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining appropriate and effective risk management

and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

Although the said systems are complemented by relevant procedure and
measures for the purpose of safeguarding the interests of the Group and its
shareholders as a whole, they are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Key features and process

As risk management is the responsibility of everyone within the Group
and something more than a formality, it is integrated into the day-to-day
operation and carried out at all levels under the stewardship of the Board.
In order to create a control environment across the Group to support the
risk management and internal control systems, the Company is committed
to building up a corporate culture based on business ethics, control
responsibility and risk awareness. To accomplish this, the Company has
adopted a general code of conduct to govern the integrity and ethical
behaviour of employees in business practices. Procedure manuals
delineating reporting lines and areas of responsibility of each department/
operating unit are laid down and are under review regularly. In addition,
arrangements for employees to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in any matters in relation to the Group or any non-
compliance with the Company’s policies are in place. All policies, procedure
and guidelines with defined limits of delegated authority are put in writing so as

to enhance effective segregation of duties and controls.

On top of fostering a risk management culture, the Board adopts a bottom-
up approach to identify the Group’s operational risks. Instead of setting
up a separate department charged with the risk-related issues, it gets
all departments/operating units involved. Under the current systems, all
department/unit heads are required to establish risk factors specific to their
responsible areas, determine impact as well as likelihood of identified risks
in accordance with the risk appetite set by the Board and develop mitigating
strategies. They shall maintain a risk register containing the said information
and update it on a regular basis. In order to provide the Board and the Audit
Committee with an overview of the Group’s operational risks and how they
are managed, the management scrutinises, filters, amends and compiles
relevant information, together with findings of the strategic risk identification
performed by the Executive Directors on behalf of the Board, as a composite
risk report to the Board/the Audit Committee for review and endorsement.
The external auditor also has access to the risk registers and composite risk
report. During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, such risk assessment

exercise was done on a quarterly basis.

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T



TEERHE Corporate Governance Report

Fl?kkkﬁﬁliﬁq*ﬁﬁk?“<
FERRNRZE

TR B/ AHEZIE W%ﬁTﬁEﬁﬂﬂﬁ%
E5EZE8H U EEATHRIRTENDD
W) EECCDET—RAERGFRI(BIARS
SRR )BT AN REBN I BFERK
HEREENSEEETHEAIR  TeEFRAE
BREESERAAERRER - HALKEBAS
BAMBHE 2B EEEMMEEAMEZ
ZEEHFERIN - BRELREESBER
FTEBERKREEZEEE - ERENSRITA
REGRR  WHEEE BREESREIARE
18 e N EP BE R Il B A R SR IR AR o

ERAREEREN—FD  AEEHAEZEK
BRTRS  AERMBEER N TERER - AR
BERESDAREZZRARR - AEE TS5
HESBAMBLRXBHEFERE - MEAX
PRERERER - EXHITE  AEEEEYE
HERIEHIE L IER - AR EE AR A%
BEEERAME HMERERERNERRER
BANEERA RBRHEENTADBIETZ
BE R BRER S B O R 1T

BEREHE
AARBEHZERENREEBANENENH
o NEHBRBEHOR Y LREBERARHEE
AR - TRREEBR AR EEE AT AL A
HEHBRBZFE o o - REEH—RILAEST
A T EFEAREERSNEES - TEET
BEHETZ TR RAEEEERTMATETZ
SFRIRIER

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Key features and process (Continued)

In the absence of an internal audit function (reasons for its absence are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Practices” on pages 5 to 8),
the Board has appointed a qualified accountant, who is also the accounting
manager of the Group, to carry out sample testing on procedure compliance
and risk-related issues in respect of all departments/operating units. Test
results and findings are reported to the Audit Committee on an annual basis.
Heads of the departments/operating units which may have a significant
financial implication on the Group’s revenue are required to make an annual
representation to the Audit Committee confirming that all potential risks in
relation to their scope of work are properly dealt with. The management will
then review the situation and provide the Board/the Audit Committee with an
annual confirmation on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal

control systems.

Being part of the internal control process, the Group has maintained a
comprehensive accounting system for ensuring complete and accurate
financial information. Annual budgets as regards rental income and operating
expenses of ISQUARE, the Group’s main source of revenue, are prepared
for effective allocation and utilisation of resources. As regards outgoings,
the Group has established procedure for approval and control of operating
expenditures whilst the capital ones are subject to management approval
prior to commitment. Other control measures include provision of monthly
management accounts to Directors and preparation of variance analyses to

help identify deficiencies and enable timely remedial actions to be taken.

Handling of inside information

Concerning inside information, the Company has implemented various
policies to govern how it shall be handled. Policy on disclosure of inside
information sets out the manner in which inside information is escalated
and disseminated whereas the risk management policy provides ways to
deal with risks which may constitute inside information. Besides, the general
code of conduct adopted by the Group prohibits inappropriate use of
confidential or inside information. All employees are required to undertake
their adherence to the said code and report any non-compliance with it to

the management.

Annual Report 2016-2017 &£k

23



24

TEERRE Corporate Governance Report

HVME&Wﬂ??%
RIERRHEE (&
7)%%%#7%%%W%i‘éﬁ%@ﬁﬁZiﬁ%&%ﬁ% N
ERMIZETRESE TR - BIIE A ERIEAR
HENHERETFREREEEFARBAERLAL
RANEZFZ G NBNEEBENEHFEENER
ZHH - R EERBIBRTESFXINE
- ARBNEERETHRTEETHE

BTt

SRR E IR RN BB B RRRET B R E
RRHEEERE  HERREREFSIRERZ

BEEE - KEREWRNMTIE A BEEE

REBZZEENHY T  ESSEREE-Z
—tFEZA-+BLEMBEEAR  BAEEE
BT I AR ES 1 I B M B B TTIRET o 2R
MEMBEBELEE  BIEMEER  BIFE
BERAEBRERE - RERTER  ESSRALE
B st - NI EE R ERBE S ENER
TR EEETABREMANERMLR  MAS
BAZSEIREMNBIREREEAEE TS
e REAEERBELETAZMREMZ LA
BMEBZINEEHS 2N EEERATEEMNE
MEBLANDEZEHEEFN  TYEREEE
N EEGVERBAEIMNESEBAMNBKRRE
R o

FERBRRTHBEZE
RMEAAT TS - AN B R K L N T B B A
= -HEREAEENTIEZARE  EFX2EZTE
FeaRRBETERNZARNBEEERE (K
FELA MR ) RER AP BRFRENZE -
SxglemRE RS & H S AN E B ATEK
VB UREEARENEREFRKREAF
HEETZRBEEHROMALAERE -

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Handling of inside information (continued)

For the purpose of complying with the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to inside information, the Company has adopted the Model Code as
its own code. Relevant procedure for guarding against mishandling of inside
information include pre-clearance on dealing in the Company’s securities
by designated Directors and notification of black-out period to Directors. In
order to remind Directors and employees of their obligations in securities

transaction, they are provided with memoranda on a quarterly basis.

Review of effectiveness

Although the management is charged with the responsibility to design,
implement and monitor the risk management and internal control systems,
the Board and the Audit Committee oversee the process. During the
financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Board, with the confirmation from
the management certifying that the aforesaid systems were functioning
effectively and the assistance of the Audit Committee, conducted a review
on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. Such review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. Based on the review result, the Board
considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal control and
financial reporting functions were adequate and that the risk management
and internal control systems were effective and apposite to the Group
though no in-house or outsourced internal audit function has been set up as
required by the CG Code. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of

concern which should be brought to the attention of the shareholders.

Principal risks and uncertainties

As with any business, the Group faces risks and uncertainties on a daily
basis. In determining the principal risks posed to the Group, the Board takes
into account the overall severity level (based on the impact and likelihood
matrix) of the risks set out in the composite risk report and their changes
during the financial year. It also examines their nature and impact on the
Group and evaluates the effectiveness and suitability of the mitigating
strategies as applied by taking into consideration the actual operation and

performance of the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

WAREBERAEWIREBRFHEY - LTEK According to the prioritisation of risks from the Group’s overall perspective,

the following are identified as principal risks currently encountered by the

Group. That said, they are by no means exhaustive or comprehensive. There

may be other risks which may not be material now but could turn out to be

such in the future.

BUTEERE  AFERR
HER b2l gt TEEERERERHE
Risk change

Risk during the year

pertaining to under review Description Key controls and mitigations
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Investment i Pursuant to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the Enabling revenue growth is an effective means to counter

properties (‘IPs”)

Group’s IPs are stated at fair values in the consolidated
statement of financial position whilst changes thereof are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Given the relatively heavy weighting of the IPs in the
Group’s property portfolio, any significant change in the
valuation of the IPs can seriously affect the Group’s profit/
loss for the year. As one of the key drivers of the valuation
of the IPs is rental income which can be volatile and there
has been continual downward pressure on leasing market
during the year under review, further valuation losses are
largely expected. Notwithstanding the valuation change, fair
value gains/losses will not affect the Group’s cash flow.

Due to the current financial reporting requirements,
valuation changes have influenced and will continue to
influence the Group’s profit/loss.

adverse impact caused by valuation losses. Measures
taken by the Group include the following:

e To preserve quality of the IPs by carrying out
maintenance and enhancement works

¢ Toimprove tenant mix

e To stay alert to the market/tenant needs for
maintaining competitiveness

¢ Tolaunch creative and popular promotions so as to
increase exposure and add value to the IPs
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

SNTEREE  AFERR
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Risk change
Risk during the year
pertaining to under review Description Key controls and mitigations
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Leasing o As a result of a fall in number of tourists (in particular o To keep abreast of the market condition so as to set

mainlanders) to Hong Kong and a strong Hong Kong
dollars, the retail sales has been weak, together with a slow
economic growth, demand for business expansion has
been decreasing during the year under review. Some retail
tenants even cut down their number of shops. There is no
assurance for the Group to get new tenants within a short
period of time, or procure new leases or renew existing
tenancies at the rate previously achieved by the Group. In
view of the prevailing retail conditions, the risk of tenants’
defautt, such as failure to pay rent, increases.

Since not many tenancies are due for renewal or rent
review during the year under review and the mitigating
strategies can, to a certain extent, help combating the
impact brought by the sluggish retail market, there was no
significant change in risk exposure in the year under review.
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the rental at a reasonable but competitive rate

To take ongoing initiatives to invite targeted tenants to
iSQUARE and appoint competent real estate agents
to market vacant spaces

To adopt a more cautious approach on tenant
selection

To maintain a well-balanced tenant mix and manage
tenancy expiries and vacancies

To increase tenancy deposit and closely monitor
tenants’ payment record

To conduct direct engagement with tenants and
monitor their financial performance
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

ENTERER  AFERR
WER k214 it TEEERERERHER
Risk change
Risk during the year
pertaining to under review Description Key controls and mitigations
ANER & B AERRBMNEI(RARIGET)REHER o BIEIFMRETINESN
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fiEn
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Manpower o Insufficient supply of experienced and skilled personnel, in e Toreview the competitiveness of salary and benefits

EERRARR O

Economic and o
political outlook

particular front-line staff, has long been an issue in service
industry. Such situation continued during the year under
review.
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As the Group'’s operation is mainly based in Hong Kong,
any adverse change in political and economic climate
in Hong Kong could disrupt its overall business. Global
uncertainties, such as terrorist attack, can also impact on
travelling and spending patterns of tourists/shoppers which
in turn affect the financial performance of the Group. There
was no apparent improvement in local/global political and
economic conditions during the year under review.

of staff
To provide staff with relevant outside training

To set up a reliever pool for front-line staff so as to
provide a temporary relief of shortage of manpower

To strengthen communication with staff through daily
briefing and social gathering

BNERRERE  IEAREGRAERELE
BRI EE

IRHERE)
BB

REREAAREKTESERY

To closely monitor the operating environment so as
to enable prompt adjustment to corporate strategies
and business activities

To maintain a solid financial position with strong cash
flow and a low gearing level

o EBAKT A
& RBKFRE

BRRBCERBEAREESRAZEREER

BEH EERRASROTEN  ERENE
EHRIEA ST A EBRREAGE

ETERERR o

Notes:

@ : Risklevel increased

& 1 Risk level remains broadly the same

In addition to monitoring the impact of the principal risks that the Group is
now facing by adjusting its corporate strategies and mitigating measures,
the management will keep observing if there is any emerging risk which may

affect the Group significantly on a regular basis.

Annual Report 2016-2017 &4 27



28

TEERRE Corporate Governance Report

IRIREAE
BB EMEMNRARERE - ARTBN A
# B ROB BRI -

RHEEN

ARFZ ARBAF - HXES - WEA
MAEERE BRI SRER - REXHEE
BENBRERETRARNALTAB -

FIBEARRAMRZSEMNEIGHREETEHN
AR BRI (@ihl.etnet.com.hk/tc/ca_calendar.php) ©

RAREHBERMAGIIRRER - ATRAQA
EXGHBUHERN BRRER-ZZT—XRFNA
NBRITZBEFAFRE LERANEBIN - KA
ATEREBE-TE—+tF=A=1T—"B1L0WBF
EA - phEABERAAED IS -

sE28E HRKE
ARFIBRRAFAESBREESTSRHE—E@
HEBBNF A - ARFAXEREHRE S MR
RESMERELF  MRERKRLF  LEE
LERFRRRE -EFEGNE  HHEEESLRE
REFEBET2ELZ8EIR (HEZERRK) -
BENEREAS RARBZIMNERBENE —RIB
ATHEHFERRAFAG A EBIR 2 1R

Shareholders’ Relations
To enhance its accountability and promote transparency, the Company is

committed to maintaining channels for communication with its shareholders.

Providing information

Corporate communications are prepared in both English and Chinese
versions and in plain language so as to make the documents understandable.
Such documents are despatched to shareholders and released to the public

domain in a timely manner.

Information released by the Company to the HKEx is posted on the

Company’s website (aihl.etnet.com.hk/eng/ca_calendar.php) thereafter.

The Articles of Association of the Company which spell out shareholders’
rights can be found on the websites of the Company and the HKEx. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2017, other than those changes adopted
by shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 8 September 2016,

there were no changes made to the Articles of Association of the Company.

Encouraging participation/interaction

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a forum for face-to-
face communication between shareholders and the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend, speak and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend. Board members, in particular, the Chairman of the Board
and chairmen of the Board committees, or their delegates, appropriate
management staff and the Company’s external auditor normally attend

annual general meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T



TEERHE Corporate Governance Report

IREREEZ )

S8 GAEHE @)
ARNBNERRRRBEACUHEANESSES
A2 RFERTEIEHRARREL - B eE
5 E B ES I (aihlcosec@tianteckgroup.com) »
AL - FEREREFERD o MERERR
Pz REAHA  BEEERAQRTUNES
B ERRERI8IHRAMPOITEI7T12-1716E
ZREERE — BEPRERTLAR QA

RIBER EPI R e EBCR B E
By EMRARARET ZARRABERA
A ARBRR(TBER D) B TEEEFHRR
REMRBERAE LIRHER

BRBRREFAE
o ARARBEETRBRERASIER/EBIRE
FRE - BRAFAE—RRANART -

o WEARRANYBEREKLEHEF6MEAR
Wifi%fﬂx%l%ﬁﬁ@(&t’lmﬂ%ﬁET\ﬂm
?ﬂi) © AMERI BRI AT (R &8 AR e th B

C WEERBRE TS BRARRBIRE
ﬁk@f’

Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction (continued)
Shareholders are also provided with means by which their enquiries can
be put forward to the Board. Such channels, including designated email

address (aihlcosec@tianteckgroup.com), correspondence address, fax

number and telephone number, are made available on the Company’s
website. Queries relating to shareholders’ own shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Subject to applicable legislation and regulations, in particular the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of
the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”, and each a “Shareholder”) may convene general meetings
and put forward proposals at general meetings. The relevant procedure is

set out below:

To convene an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
° The Company holds a general meeting as its AGM every year. An

AGM is usually held in September.

o If the Company fails to hold an AGM (which is unlikely to occur) after
6 months have elapsed since the end of the Company’s financial year,
any Shareholder may apply to the court in Hong Kong which, on such

application, may call or direct the calling of an AGM of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To move a resolution at an AGM

Shareholder(s) can make a request to circulate a resolution for an

AGM if they represent at least:

(@

2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who
have a right to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the

request relates; or

50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at

the AGM to which the request relates.

The request must:

(@

be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

identify the proposed resolution;

be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the

AGM to which the request relates or if later, the time at which

notice of the AGM is despatched.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and

upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the

company secretary will request the Board to include the resolution

in the agenda for the AGM. On the contrary, if the request is verified

as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this

outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included
in the agenda for the AGM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To convene a General Meeting (“GM”)

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders having a right to vote at GMs can request the

Directors to call a GM.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with

at the meeting;

(b)  may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved

and is intended to be moved at the meeting;

() may consist of several documents in like form;

(d)  must be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company; and

(e) must be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to convene a GM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this

outcome and accordingly, a GM will not be convened as requested.

Directors must call a GM within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement and the meeting so called must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice

convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not convene a GM as required, the Shareholder(s)
concerned or any of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them may themselves call a GM, and the meeting
so convened must be called for a date not more than 3 months after
the date on which the Directors become subject to the requirement
to call a GM. The Company must reimburse any reasonable expenses
incurred by the Shareholder(s) requesting the GM by reason of the

failure of the Directors duly to call a GM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

To propose a person other than a Director of the Company for

election as a Director at a GM, including an AGM

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T

In accordance with its Articles of Association, the Company at the
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated office by
electing a person thereto. If a Shareholder (other than the person
to be nominated as mentioned hereinafter), who is duly qualified
to attend and vote at the GM for which the notice of intention as
hereinafter described is to be given, wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at any GM, he/she should sign and deposit a notice of
intention to that effect at 9th Floor, iSQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
for the attention of the Board together with a notice signed by the
nominated person of his/her willingness to be elected. The minimum
length of period during which such notices are given shall be at least
7 days and the period for lodgement shall commence no earlier than
the day after despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such
election (inclusive of such day) and end no later than 7 days prior to

the date of such GM (“Lodgement Period”).

To enable the Company to inform Shareholders of the foregoing
proposal, the written notices as mentioned above shall be
accompanied by (i) the information of the nominated person as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and
(i) the written consent of the nominated person to the publication of

his/her personal data.

Relevant procedure and the Lodgement Period for each GM will
be set out in the corresponding circular to be despatched to the

Shareholders.

If the notice is received less than 15 clear days prior to the GM,
the Company will consider adjourning the GM in order to allow
Shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 clear business days’ notice

of the proposal, whichever is the longer.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction (continued)

Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM

° Eligible Shareholders can express their views on a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at a GM
in a written statement of not more than 1,000 words and request the
Company to circulate it to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a

GM. Eligible Shareholders must represent at least:

(a) 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the

relevant right to vote; or
(o) 50 Shareholders having the relevant right to vote.

° For a statement concerning a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution, “the relevant right to vote” means a right to vote on that
resolution at the meeting to which the request relates. For a statement
concerning other business, “the relevant right to vote” means a right
to vote at the meeting to which the request relates.

° The request must:

(a) be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

(b) identify the statement to be circulated;

(c) be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d) be received by the Company at least 7 days before the meeting

to which it relates.

Annual Report 2016-2017 & 33



34

TEERRE Corporate Governance Report

IR SR EE1Z () Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
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The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company will circulate the statement to Shareholders entitled to

receive notice of the meeting provided that:

(@) if the request relates to an AGM,

(i) the statement is received in time to enable the Company
to send a copy of the statement at the same time as the

notice of AGM is despatched; or

(ii) otherwise, the Shareholder(s) concerned have, not
later than 7 days before the AGM, deposited a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s)

concerned.

(o) if the request relates to a GM other than an AGM, the
Shareholder(s) concerned have, not later than 7 days before
the GM, deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in circulating the statement submitted by

the Shareholder(s) concerned.

On the contrary, if the request is verified as not in order or as not
received in time for the Company to include a copy of the statement
in the notice of AGM or the Shareholder(s) concerned has/have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the circulation purpose within the time frame (as the case may be),
the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the statement will not be circulated to Shareholders

entitled to receive notice of the meeting.
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Approach and Strategy

Being a responsible enterprise, the Company is not only concerned with
its financial growth but also its non-financial performance. The Company
recognises that the manner in which it delivers business will impact on
the environment and society. As such, the management strives to make a
positive contribution to the sustainability development of the environment
and society by integrating the socially responsible practices in its daily
operation. The Executive Directors are responsible for driving environmental
and social responsibilities initiatives and reviewing their practices for

performance improvement.

Reporting Scope

This Corporate Social Responsibility Report provides a review on the Group’s
performance of its environmental and social responsibilities for the financial
year ended 31 March 2017. As iISQUARE is the Group’s main operation

vehicle, its performance is included herein unless otherwise specified.

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (“Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules. Its content is determined through a process which involves
identification of stakeholders and relevant issues on environmental and social
responsibilities and prioritisation of the issues to be reported after taking into
account the stakeholders’ expectations and the Group’s unique business
nature. In this report, only the environmental and social responsibilities
initiatives and performance that are material and/or relevant to the Group
and its stakeholders are outlined. During the financial year ended 31 March
2017, the Company complied with all the “comply or explain” provisions,

where applicable, set out in the Guide.

Stakeholders’ Engagement and Materiality
Assessment

To truly understand the views and expectations of the stakeholders on
sustainability development, the Company keeps ongoing communication
with its key stakeholders. During the year under review, the Company
engaged its shareholders, employees, business partners and tenants
through face-to-face discussions and questionnaires. Reporting issues are
identified according to the impact of the issues on the Group’s business
and stakeholders as evaluated by the management and the stakeholders

respectively.
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Environmental Issues

Policy

Since the management acknowledges that the Group shall take into account
the impact of its business operation on the environment while achieving
financial growth, the Group has adopted an environmental policy with a

focus on the following:
1. ensuring full compliance with applicable legislation and requirements

2. incorporating environmental considerations into contracting decisions

and tenant selection where practicable
3. promoting environmental awareness among staff
4, adopting eco-friendly practices in daily operation
5. disposing of waste in an environmentally responsible way

6. reducing waste and where practicable, reusing and recycling materials

7. communicating the Group’s policy to its key stakeholder and
encouraging it to integrate the environmental concerns into its

operation process

Initiatives

In order to help reduce carbon emissions from the office, the Group during
the year under review started appending an automatic footnote to all
outgoing emails requesting recipients to consider the environment before
printing, issued reminder to employees on observance of the Group’s green
office measures and organised a recycling programme for used/useless lai
see packets. The Group also participated in the “Earth Hour 2017” and “Hong
Kong No Air Con Night 2016” organised by World Wide Fund for Nature
(“WWEF”) and Green Sense respectively so as to raise the staff awareness on

environmental conservation.
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Initiatives (Continued)
Simultaneously, the Group continues to operate office facilities in an

environmentally responsible manner, for instance

° using water-saving sanitary fittings, such as dual flushing cisterns and

photo-sensor water taps

o using FSC-certified A4 paper

o recycling used white paper through a paper recycling company
. employing multi-zone lighting controls
° using environmentally friendly paper for printing corporate

communication to shareholders

° switching off air-conditioning, lights and computers when they are not

in use

For the purpose of matching up the Group’s concern over environmental
protection, ISQUARE, being the Group’s main operation vehicle, also takes

proactive steps towards this end. During the year under review, it

° replaced some less energy efficient light bulbs with LED lights

° participated in “Earth Hour 2017” as organised by WWF

° provided venues at a substantially discounted rate for events
promoting the nature and environmental awareness, such as the
exhibition organised by The Nature Conservancy for saving Yunnan

golden monkeys and the “Butterfly Wonderland Upcycling Art

Exhibition” as hosted by Green Power
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Initiatives (Continued)
In addition to the aforesaid, iISQUARE keeps employing those green

measures it has been using, such as

o use of ultra low sulphur diesel for generator
o diversion of used water from cooling towers for flushing
o shortening daily operating hours of lights with devices, such as

multi-zone lighting controls, and air-conditioning at common areas

accessible by shoppers where possible

o encouraging tenants to follow guidelines in relation to environmentally

friendly practices

o recycling waste paper, plastics and metals via the participation of
the “Programme on Source Separation of Commercial and Industrial

Waste” as organised by the Environmental Protection Department

o equipping the building with energy saving features and materials,
such as the use of glass curtain walls to minimise lighting sources and
window films with anti-UV coating to reduce solar radiation and heat,

where appropriate

After retrofitting certain chillers with variable frequency drives in February
2015 (together with some other energy saving measures taken during the
year under review), the electricity consumption of iISQUARE has dropped.
Taking figure for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 as the baseline, the
amount of electricity purchased from electricity provider during the financial
year ended 31 March 2017 reduced over 1,161,000 kWh, representing a
drop of about 8.57%. To further reduce electricity consumption, iISQUARE
will continue its energy saving programme on lighting system through
the identification of locations where more energy efficient lights could be
installed. In addition, it will recycle all the used toner/cartridges in the financial
year ending 31 March 2018.
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IRIEETE ) Environmental Issues (continued)
£33 Performance

ARAEBTENREMHEIRENIEEER - MEH Since the Group is principally engaged in property investment and
RESBTFEURG AR  EFfEANEELE investment holding, and iISQUARE is predominantly service-oriented, the
REBAZEMERED  c RAFE - BAEmMES total amount of direct Greenhouse Gas emissions (“GHG emissions”)
MBS = REEHE R A% B & B E 58 UF generated by them is relatively small. The largest contributor to the carbon
HEERR - footprint of both the Group and ISQUARE in the year under review was the

indirect GHG emissions from electricity consumption.

1. BREIBIHER(ZatRES) 1. GHG emissions' (CO, equivalent)

BHEFOR(&E1)

Direct sources (Scope 1)1

o L2 AW 0.77 0.73
Diesel? Tonnes

IR A (#E/E2)"

Indlirect sources (Scope 2)!

o TS YN 6,725.55 6,773.21
Electricity? Tonnes

H 1 K5 (FEEI3)"

Other indiirect sources (Scope 3)'

o BRIEBRIKMEMEH AW 19.54 24.39
Electricity used for processing fresh water4 Tonnes

o BRIBISKMEREE S AW 9.24 10.88
Electricity used for processing sewage® Tonnes

o EFFEEERAEERS N 1.20 @A
Paper waste disposed at landfills® Tonnes NA

RERBAEIRE(HET - 2K%3) NI 6,756.30 6,809.21

Total GHG emissions’ (Scopes 1, 2 and 3) Tonnes

BREAERBHN

GHG emissions avoided

o 4foR[O)UKS NI (207.36) (224.98)
Recycling of paper® Tonnes
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RIEEE @) Environmental Issues (continued)
=B @) Performance (Continued)
2. BERERE 2. Energy consumption
EEREEFE
Direct energy consumption
o Lo VST 3.24 T
Diesel® MWh NA
IEERE R EFE
Indlirect energy consumption
o FHho JKEL/ s 12,454.73 TE A
Electricity™© MWh NA
BEIREREEE VSN 12,457.97 TiE A
Total energy consumption MWh NA
Y HREHEBE RERERES JKE /N F K 0.23 TNEA
Total energy consumption per m2 of floor area MWh/m? NA
3. #RaSRJBFE 3. Paper consumption'

o WRERLK NI 598.48 T
Office paper kg NA
o ENEARBAAMK NIy 381.30 T
Paper for printing corporate communication kg NA
BIERE NI 979.78 T
Total paper consumption kg NA
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IRIE R ) Environmental Issues (continued)
=B @) Performance (Continued)
4. FKkEe 4. Water consumption’2

MK E Ak 48,620.00 TiE A
Total water consumption m3 NA
BYAKEEERZ KBS SRR 0.92 TiE A
Total water consumption per m? of floor area m3/m?2 NA
HARAEERERUARBES - mBEERE As the Group is situated at iISQUARE where water is provided by
52 HOKTIREKEE - MAKE RBIRE Water Supplies Department, both the Group and ISQUARE do not
S1E A B EE_E I8 R 7OR A A T {al encounter any problem in sourcing water for daily operation.
;ELE o
5 EWER 5. Waste management

JER B

Waste collected for recycling

LI i 3 NI 43,200.00 46,870.00
Paper's kg

o ¥R INT 224.00 208.00
Plastics™ kg

o & NI 156.00 169.00
Metals'® kg
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Performance (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T

GHG emissions, including classification and calculation basis, are based on
the Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in
Hong Kong as prepared by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
and the Environmental Protection Department (“Hong Kong GHG Guidelines”).
All numbers in this table are rounded to two decimal places.

Boundary for the scopes

Scope 1 is the direct GHG emissions from the emergency generator owned

and controlled by iISQUARE. It excludes any offsets, if available.

Scope 2 is the indirect GHG emissions that are resulted from the generation

of electricity which the Group and iISQUARE, excluding tenants through their
own metered supply, purchased from power company for own consumption.

Scope 3 is other indirect GHG emissions that (i) come from paper waste
disposed at landfills and (i) are relevant to the activities of the Group and
iISQUARE and are generated due to electricity used for processing fresh water
and sewage, excluding those operated from tenants’ own metered supply, by

government departments.

Emissions are calculated as per the amount of diesel consumed by the
emergency generator of iISQUARE and the emission factors and the Global
Warming Potential set out in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.

Emissions are calculated according to the amount of electricity purchased by
the Group and iISQUARE for own consumption as shown in electricity bills and
the latest emission factor as published by the relevant electricity provider.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group and iISQUARE as shown in water bills and the latest available unit
electricity consumption of fresh water as published by the Water Supplies
Department multiplied by the territory-wide default value.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group and iISQUARE as shown in water bills and the latest available unit
electricity consumption of processing sewage as published by the Drainage
Services Department multiplied by the territory-wide default value.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of office paper consumed by
the Group (excluding paper generated by the management company engaged
to run ISQUARE (“MgtCo”) for any purpose in relation to iISQUARE) and the
relevant emission factor set out in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines. Amount of
paper consumed by the Group first recorded is for the year ended 31 March
2017.
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Performance (Continued)

Note 7: As no data in relation to paper waste disposed at landfills was recorded
before the year ended 31 March 2017, the total GHG emissions for the year
ended 31 March 2016 do not include emissions from paper waste disposed
at landfills.

Note 8: Emissions avoided are calculated according to the amount of paper collected
for recycling (including paper generated within the Group, paper documents
tendered by external parties to the Group, and paper disposed through
iISQUARE) and the relevant emission factor provided in the Hong Kong GHG

Guidelines.

Note 9:  Energy consumption is calculated based on the amount of diesel consumed
by the emergency generator of iISQUARE and the relevant conversion factor
set out in the “List of common conversion factors (Engineering conversion
factors)” as published by IOR Energy Pty Ltd. No such data was recorded
before the year ended 31 March 2017.

Note 10: Energy consumption is the amount of electricity purchased by the Group and
iISQUARE for own consumption as shown in electricity bills. No such data is
available for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Note 11: Referring to paper generated by the Group only (excluding paper generated by

the MgtCo for any purpose in relation to iISQUARE). No such data is available
for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Note 12: Being the amount of water used by the Group and iISQUARE as shown in
water bills. No such data is available for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Note 13: Including paper generated within the Group, paper documents tendered by
external parties to the Group, and paper disposed through iISQUARE.
Note 14: Being plastics disposed through iSQUARE.

Note 15: Being metals disposed through iSQUARE.

Due to their business nature, the Group and iISQUARE do not generate
a material amount of hazardous waste and disclosure of total packaging

material used for finished products is not applicable.

Save as disclosed above, the Group and iISQUARE’s operating activities

have no significant impact on the environment and natural resources.

Annual Report 2016-2017 &%}

43



44

TEHEETHRSE Corporate Social Responsibilicy Report

IRIEERE @

B <r B IREBA AR R R

WAFE - REBWENEELREETEMNER
SEAEAFZEMRRFAEAER IR -

HEEE
HRBIRESHEEEHIATEEAR  BARE
EEFEZRRENFESERERMcEE A
It Bl ERENwEREAREE -

=2
HARAEEZRNERAREE FEURNEB T8
X BEEESHEFSERNIERE - 827
E%%@WﬁkbL@ﬁ;EmXMEEMEO
Al AEEEHMNEAREERIEEN —RA
#=spal(r=pall) - “@%ﬁh EERALEE - b
TEAREE - B IERERY - FEME RIE®R] o phoh -
REEDSIERERBEE @ JIHBEREARA
MESERe RMZENTR INEE - RiTEEE
BABHMNRF REXRAFIRFMBERA -
BAREEF R EEINERERERE1SE
EFEICENDCEEAREPUITHEZES A
EENLHOAN - BEAERBERTEEREET
WG RIBHTERENREA - ARRFFY
BB THITRIBTE - LAMAIE BTGB - 2
TREE TEAT M FHRYRIE o

HARRR L EATEZ AL BER@E - &
B TERE - BEIREMFBMENNEE
ARBEEENTESNEET ﬂ KEEM
RATEFF AR E A S0 2 FE A S8

* RAGEMEETHREMERNEE BITRER
RRAIEERERARIRERESH —REFRYMEE
BmEAMET -

Environmental Issues (continued)

Compliance with environmental-related laws and
regulations

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations relating to the

environment that had a significant impact on it.

Social Issues

Since the management of iISQUARE has been outsourced to the MgtCo
and there is no need for the Group to directly deal with employment-related
matters in respect of iISQUARE, discussion on areas relating to social issues

only covers the Group.

Employment

As the Group’s success depends largely on the support of its employees®,
the management places great emphasis on maintaining a quality workplace.
Building up a culture which advocates ethical and responsible business
practices has become essential. To this end, the Group has adopted a
general code of conduct (“Code”) which applies to both Directors and
employees and deals with areas of data privacy, copyright protection,
prevention of bribery, equal opportunities and “whistle-blowing”. In addition,
the Group has laid down an employment policy, setting out its principles
on recruitment and promotion, such as equal opportunities and “selection
on capability” basis. Procedures and factors to be considered on review
of the remuneration packages of the senior management are delineated in
the remuneration policy. Information in respect of the Group’s remuneration
review mechanism is mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report
headed “Remuneration Committee” as set out on pages 13 to 15. To
be consistent with the principles of the employment policy on motivating
employees and providing equal opportunities, performance appraisal is
conducted annually. It is the basis for salary adjustment, discretionary bonus

and promotion.

Although policies on compensation and dismissal, working hours and rest
periods, and some other benefits and welfare are not put in writing, relevant
steps to govern their application and due observance have been developed
and implemented under the management of the Executive Directors of the

Company.

* Staff/employees exclude Directors of the Company and staff employed by the
MgtCo for general building and property management of iISQUARE throughout
this Corporate Social Responsibility Report.
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Social Issues (continued)

Development and training

In order to create a supportive workplace which enables the employees to
develop their professional potential and discharge their duties adequately,
the Group provides subsidy for job-related training to all employees,
irrespective of their rankings. Given the complexity of job duties, senior
management is provided with additional funding for outside training. Other
than financial support, the Group also organises group-wide training for its

staff from time to time.

Key topics covered by the training undertaken by the employees during the

year under review included:

° compliance and regulatory updates
° tackling cybersecurity issues

° prevention and detection of fraud

° prevention of bribery

Employee engagement
Since a good work-life balance is considered significant to the employees,
the Group encourages its staff to complete their tasks within office hours

and organises gatherings for them so as to promote the spirit of the Group.

Although the Group does not have a collective bargaining policy or similar
practice in place, it respects its employees and takes steps to ensure their
voices are heard. Other than departmental meetings and communication
through emails, the Group encourages direct dialogue between the
management and staff by adopting a non-bureaucratic culture. Employees
can freely bring up issues to the management when they consider

necessary.

Employee satisfaction survey is another important means for the Group to
solicit staff opinions about their working environment and expectation. Result
will be shared among the management and relevant department heads so as

to identify ways to make further improvement.
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Social Issues (continued)

Employee engagement (Continued)

During the year under review, a satisfaction survey on employees was
conducted. About 70% of the respondents found either satisfied or very
satisfied with the Group as a whole whilst over 60% was happy with the
workforce-management relationship. As at 31 March 2017, more than half
of the employees have been working with the Group over a decade. The
employee turnover rate for the year ended 31 March 2017 was about 6.15%

while the employee absence rate was around 2.08%.

Health and safety

Since the Group’s main business is property investment and investment
holding, health and safety risk posed to its employees as a result of
occupational activities is relatively low. Nevertheless, the Group is dedicated
to provide a healthy and safe working environment to its staff and therefore

has established a policy in this regard with an emphasis on:
o compliance with all applicable statutory requirements

o ensuring a continuous improvement of the health and safety level
at workplace by reviewing the operating practices and seeking

comments from employees from time to time

o adopting measures which can reduce, control and if possible,

eliminate hazards at workplace

o conveying the Group’s concerns over health and safety to the MgtCo
and requesting it to get its front-line staff and contractors familiarised

with the proper procedures required in that regard

During the year under review, the Group carried out an audit on lighting level
by referencing to the “Guide to Health Risk Assessment — Office Environment
Series” published by the Labour Department with the aim to improve the

working environment.
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Social Issues (continued)

Labour standards

While the Group does not have its own specific policy regarding child labour
or forced labour, it is a statutory requirement in Hong Kong, a place where

the Group operates, not to engage child and forced labour.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact
on it relating to employment, health and safety, and labour standards as

mentioned in aspects B1, B2 and B4 of the Guide.

Supply chain management

Given the Group’s business nature and operation mode, its suppliers can
broadly be categorised into direct suppliers and indirect suppliers. For the
former one, it refers to those the Group directly liaises with, such as the
MgtCo, professional service providers and some other companies that
deliver services for support of the Group’s infrastructure and office operation
on areas such as insurance, banking and information technology. Services
of the indirect suppliers, such as electrical and mechanical engineering,
cleaning and security, are provided under the umbrella of the MgtCo. Based
on the expenditure level and the significance to the Group, the Group’s key
suppliers are bankers and the MgtCo, of which, the role of the latter one is
particularly important given its “contracting” relationships with the indirect

suppliers.

Since suppliers are the “extension” of the Group, their behaviour shall reflect
the Group’s values. Although the Group does not maintain a separate
policy on managing environmental and social risks of its suppliers, it has
embedded the relevant concerns in its environmental policy and health and
safety policy. As the MgtCo is the key supplier which poses a significant
impact on the Group, it is provided with relevant policies of the Group in the
hope that it can convey the Group’s concerns to the indirect suppliers. The
MgtCo is also requested to integrate the Group’s values into its operation
process where practicable and economically viable. Apart from written
communication, the Group has frequent direct dialogue and regular meetings
with the MgtCo. According to the said policies, the Group also reviews
its practices from time to time so as to reduce health and safety risks at
workplace and incorporates environmental considerations into contracting

decisions.
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Social Issues (continued)

Supply chain management (Continued)

Although more than half of the suppliers have been a working partner of
the Group over a decade, the Group values the relationships with them
and is eager to know if there is any room for improvement. To achieve it, a
satisfaction survey was sent to some suppliers on a random basis during the
year under review. The feedback of the survey was encouraging. It showed
that all the respondents found partnering with the Group was not merely

mutually beneficial, but also as a whole satisfactory.

Product/service responsibility

Shop tenants of ISQUARE are the Group’s key customers. Establishing a
sound and lasting relationship with them is pivotal to the success of the
Group. To facilitate a two-way communication, the management team
pays visits to the shops from time to time so as to exchange views with the
tenants directly and respond to their concerns efficiently. The tenants can
also contact the management, leasing and promotion teams via telephone
and email as and when needed. In spite of the limited written complaints
received during the year ended 31 March 2017, a formal complaint-handling
mechanism is in place so as to ensure tenants’ dissatisfaction can be

properly addressed to in a timely manner.

In order to evaluate the services delivered to the tenants and identify service
gaps, the Group during the year under review conducted a satisfaction
survey on about half of its tenants. Although the survey result showed that
there were some areas such as marketing the Group had to further work on,
over 70% of the respondents considered the overall performance in each
of the areas of leasing, management/security and technical/maintenance
as satisfactory. About three quarters of the respondents expressed interest
in renewing tenancy with the Group and more than 70% said they would

recommend iISQUARE to their business partners.

Other than customer satisfaction, the Group also recognises the importance
of personal data protection. Relevant concerns have been incorporated into
the Code and are communicated to the employees. According to the Code,
employees are required to safeguard the privacy and security of personal
information of the Group’s stakeholders by observing the data protection
principles of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. Collected information is
accessible on a “need-to-know” basis. In view of the close relationship with
the MgtCo, the Group has also made known to it of the Group’s concerns in

this regard.
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Social Issues (continued)

Product/service responsibility (continued)

Providing a safe environment to the tenants is also a great concem to the
Group. Although property management of iSQUARE is the job of the MgtCo,
the Group still closely monitors it by receiving updates from the MgtCo via
regular project meetings and daily report. On top of it, the project team also
patrols ISQUARE on a daily basis so as to ensure it is managed in an orderly
fashion. As for ad hoc issues, the MgtCo is required to report to the Group

promptly.

Anti-corruption

As the Group has zero-tolerance on any forms of bribery, corruption and
fraud, it has established a policy detailing situations in which acceptance of
advantages is allowed. Key principles concerning prevention of bribery and
channel for reporting suspected cases are set out in the Code. Employees
are required to undertake their adherence thereto. Besides, internal control
activities are in place to detect malpractices. Upon receipt of any reported
issues, the management will conduct investigation and handle them in the

manner set out in the Code.

To help staff stay alert to the pitfall of corruption, the Group during the year
arranged a talk hosted by the Independent Commission Against Corruption

for all its staff.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact
on it relating to product responsibility and anti-corruption as mentioned in
aspects B6 and B7 of the Guide.
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Social Issues (continued)

Community

In recognition of its role in advancement of the community, the Group has
established a community policy. General principles on donation, focus areas,
and the form in which the support is delivered are clearly set out therein.
During the year under review, the Group made donations to Po Leung Kuk,

Hong Chi Association and The Community Chest.

The Group believes that going beyond corporate philanthropy by providing
venues to organisations for hosting charitable events is the best way to help
the needy as it can inspire others to follow and draw the public attention to
the needs of the underprivileged. During the year ended 31 March 2017,

the Group offered venues at a substantially discounted rate to the following

charities:

. Oxfam

. Médecins Sans Frontieres
o The Nature Conservancy

° Save the Children

° Green Power

o Po Leung Kuk

. UNICEF

° St. James’ Settlement
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) submits herewith the
annual report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for

the year ended 31 March 2017.

Principal Place of Business

Associated International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim

Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Financial Statements
The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017
and the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 79 to 138.
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Dividends and Annual General Meeting

An interim dividend of HK$0.60 per share (2016: HK$0.60 per share) was
paid on 5 January 2017. The Board now recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.60 per share (2016: HK$0.60 per share) in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2017.

Subject to the members’ approval on the proposed final dividend at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed for the purpose of determining entitlement to
the said final dividend from Monday, 18 September 2017 to Wednesday,
20 September 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday, 15 September 2017.
The proposed final dividend will be paid on Thursday, 28 September 2017 to
members whose names appear on the register of members on Wednesday,
20 September 2017 following approval at the annual general meeting to be

held on Tuesday, 12 September 2017.

For the purpose of determining the identity of members who are entitled to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 5 September 2017
to Tuesday, 12 September 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday, 4 September 2017.
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Business Review and Commentary

Business model and strategies

The Group’s business is property investment in Hong Kong. The Group
generates and preserves its value through being an investor in the property

market.

To accomplish this, the Group strives to nurture growth from its existing
properties through prudent management. Whilst the Group generally
maintains a prudent and conservative approach towards property
investment, it also seeks to exploit opportunities for future development. With
the aim of securing stable and recurring returns, the Group has adopted
very stringent investment criteria and targets only high quality projects and

investments.

The Group recognises the importance of sound financial strength to support
sustainable growth and future development and hence, its fundamental
strategy is to maintain a solid financial position with strong cash flow and a

low gearing ratio.

Financial results

The Group achieved a profit from operations before valuation changes
in investment properties of HK$549.0 million for the financial year ended
31 March 2017, representing a slight decrease of approximately 0.6%
compared with the previous financial year. The decrease was mainly due to
decrease of rental income from ISQUARE compared to the previous financial

year.

Net valuation losses on investment properties for the financial year ended
31 March 2017 amounted to HK$614.9 million, compared with the net
valuation gains of HK$412.3 million for the previous financial year. The
valuation changes will only affect the accounting profit or loss but not the

cash flow of the Group.
The Group recorded a loss attributable to equity shareholders of HK$159.1

million, compared with a profit attributable to equity shareholders of

HK$871.4 million for the previous financial year.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Financial results (Continued)

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing retail, entertainment, food
and beverage establishments. Rental income from iISQUARE amounted
to approximately HK$658.0 million for the financial year ended 31 March
2017, representing a slight decrease of approximately 0.9% compared
with the previous financial year. The occupancy rate at 31 March 2017 was
approximately 96.8% compared with approximately 96.3% at 31 March
2016.

Capital structure and liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2017 was HK$14,148.0 million,
compared with HK$14,739.1 million at 31 March 2016.

On 7 October 2013, the Company entered into a facility agreement with
a bank comprising of a 3-year term loan facility of up to HK$200 million
and a 3-year revolving loan facility of up to HK$100 million both at floating
interest rate. On 30 August 2016, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement with the bank for extension of the facilities for three years to
8 October 2019. The Company has an option to further extend the facilities
for two additional years to 8 October 2021, subject to, among other things,
the agreement of the lending bank. At 31 March 2017, the banking facilities
were utilised to the extent of HK$200 million (2016: HK$200 million) and the
Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as total bank loans divided by total equity)
was 1.4% (2016: 1.4%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Staff

At 31 March 2017, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding
the staff employed by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Property Management
Limited for general building and property management of iSQUARE, was 37
(2016: 38) and the related costs incurred during the year were approximately

HK$25.2 million (2016: HK$25.0 million).

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside

training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Key performance indicators
(@)  Cost of services to revenue ratio
. Definition and calculation: Cost of services to revenue ratio
measures the operation efficiency by comparing cost of
services as a percentage of revenue. It shows the level of direct

expenditure required to generate every dollar of revenue.

° Purpose: The Group emphasises cost control. The ratio
provides direction on controlling and better using expenses.
iISQUARE is the principal investment of the Group and it
contributed 99.5% of the Group’s revenue for the financial year
ended 31 March 2017 (2016: 99.5%). The extent to which this
goal has been achieved is assessed by comparing the ratio
for iISQUARE from one year to the next, as it is an indicator

showing the operation efficiency of iISQUARE.

° Quantified KPI data: The cost of services to revenue ratio for
ISQUARE at 31 March 2017 was 12.5% (2016: 12.2%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Key performance indicators (Continued)

Occupancy rate

Definition and calculation: Occupancy rate is a measure that
reflects the leasing performance. It is defined as lettable area
that have been rented out as a percentage of the total lettable

area.

Purpose: The Group aims to enhance leasing performance.
The extent to which this goal has been achieved is assessed by
comparing occupancy rate for each investment property from
one year to the next, as it is an indicator showing the leasing

performance of various properties in the Group.

Quantified KPI data:

HiEx

Occupancy rate
A2017F3H831H 201693 H31H

BREYE Investment properties At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016
B 5% iISQUARE 96.8% 96.3%
NREBHEMEEYSE  Other commercial properties in Hong Kong 100% 100%
URBEBN T EYE Industrial properties in Hong Kong 100% 100%

RBEBR - RRRBEENEST 2R
SR E N ERREE

BEB(R AP RS2 BRMEHERAE
EREHRRAR - TERRAR AR LR
Bl - AREEF SRR E 2 EEBENH - 5]
N A REIEEHS0EM DR B EARE
M MZSHRBAEEEREN D -

Environmental policy, performance and related
compliance; key relationships with stakeholders
Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
compliance with environmental-related laws and regulations as well as
key relationships with its stakeholders as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be found in the Corporate Social

Responsibility Report on pages 35 to 50 of the annual report, and such

discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties

Discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report headed “Risk Management and
Internal Control — Principal risks and uncertainties” as set out on pages 24
to 27 of the annual report, and such discussion forms part of this Directors’

Report.

Particulars of important events
The Board has not identified any important events affecting the Group that

have occurred since the end of the financial year.

Outlook

Weak retail segment continues to put downward pressure on the Hong Kong
leasing market. With the anticipated increase in new supply of retail premises
in the Tsim Sha Tsui area, increased downward pressure on the leasing
market is expected in the coming year. Management will closely monitor
the market changes and will take appropriate steps to reduce the possible
impact on the rental income of the Group. It is anticipated that rental income
from iISQUARE and the results from operations of the Group for the coming

financial year will be adversely affected.
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Directors
The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date of

this report were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Lee Chung

In accordance with articles 95 and 96 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and Mr Yau Allen
Lee-nam shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual

general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

During the financial year and up to the date of this report, directors of all the
Company’s subsidiaries were Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng

Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and Mr Cheong Sim Lam.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed
to their respective executive offices in the Company for an initial period of
two years effective on 1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after
the said period unless and until either party gives to the other three months’
notice in writing and their respective directorship shall also be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s

Articles of Association.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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B ERER Confirmation of Independence

BIE(EBHAXTIMARARZES FMHEL) The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive

([ LA E3.131 - AR AIEWREISALE L directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13

FHITEFHREEBIENFFRERE - A7 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of

RETREYIFNTESHABIAL - Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent non-
executive directors to be independent.

«Tr
==

NS Interests and Short Positions of Directors and

EENESTTHRAEES

v

a

7 HEROMEEZFNER Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
RE and Debentures

EARDNBIZRBCE S LA EEGY([EBHEG ) As at 31 March 2017, the directors and chief executives of the Company
FI2EREBFOELMETR » SR L3 and their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had the following
TAERETESFRSHZESTRN([1ZX4ESFE ) interests in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within

LEMFRRARABREBHERHMERAT the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) as
([BRFTDELMRR - ARFINESE - F=1T recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
BHAENEBMEA (KR ITHTRANZERZR)NR_-E 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
—tF = A=+ —ABAAQRRERAEEE (A Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model

FEBEHIGHIEXVEFTEMNTE R ) 2 RN HEZ Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
T Code”):
(@ &7 (@) The Company
ZERHEE
Number of ordinary shares
HE BTN
BERERE
B B 48 8
fBIA R REER AR B M=
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting
4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
EIBE Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 - - 2,078,992 0.58%
SEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim 24,555,715 1,034,000 — 25,589,715 711%
EImE Cheong Keng Hooi 11,759,839 275,280 — 12,085,119 3.34%
fEpede) Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 — 1,831,155 0.51%
$EIRIS Cheong Chong Ling 1,588,000 — — 1,588,000 0.44%
AR Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 - 120,000 362,000 0.10%
() (Note)
0 AFHEZE TAI120,0000% AR EER AR (—M Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary
FREAE R S A R BB ARSI A 2 R 4 shares held by Chason Limited (a company controlled by Mr Sin Cho
H)2A)) 578 89120,000i8 AR o RIRHES Chiu, Charles and his spouse in equal shares) where Mr Sin is taken to
1B+ S AR B L F IR D BRR RS o be interested in such shares under the SFO.

Annual Report 2016-2017 &4 59



BEEHRE Directors’ Report

EENESITHAEEENIR Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
% HERODNEESNWRELZRE  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

KA (@) and Debentures (continued)
(b) REMERRLE (b) Tian Teck Land Limited
RGBE
Number of shares
HE#TH
BEREE
ERER IR1D 4B
BAER KEER DR R By WESL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting
a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
fEEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 4,035,792 590,000 — 4,625,792 0.97%
SEIEMN Cheong Kheng Lim 46,023,872 115,292 — 46,139,164 9.72%
sE M Cheong Keng Hooi 26,862,036 1,002,384 — 27,864,420 5.87%
2ol Cheong Sim Lam 1,099,504 - - 1,099,504 0.23%
$ERIS Cheong Chong Ling 412,000 — — 412,000 0.09%
FEAERE Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2,000 — 115,200 117,200 0.02%
(7F)(Note)

i AR TA115,2000% AR EER AR (—M Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares
AR R 5t A I B R (B LAAR S5 R iR 2 2L R ) held by Chason Limited (a company controlled by Mr Sin Cho Chiu,
BRR)) FTiE A E 115,200l 1% 15 © RIEFEFH Charles and his spouse in equal shares) where Mr Sin is taken to be
TG RS R RIS L B KR % o interested in such shares under the SFO.
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EENBSTHRAEEENR
7 - HERDMEEENERZR
KB )

) KEBRAT

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

(¢) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

ZBERHE

Number of ordinary shares
HEBTH
BERERE
ERER IR HE B
B AR KEER DR L WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting
a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
SRR Cheong Hooi Hong 25 — — 25 25%
SEIEMN Cheong Kheng Lim 25 — — 25 25%
{E I Cheong Keng Hooi 25 — — 25 25%
fikeqe) Cheong Sim Lam 25 — — 25 25%

B bt PR BEE SN - AR BIRRE & H
EIE2GHRERFNERMETR - SURBIFLEST
AIAEAL T X AAR R REZPAEHA R - 1
“EAF=A=t+—H rRAEF HSTH
ANBREMBEA(ZETRUZER)DREHER
AR B REAREEE (AT A B IGBIEXVALFTE
HES )R - AR SERE R IORE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the directors and
chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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TEREREMATEENBRS
MR A ER R AR

BRERFIBEZARAEZTRERTTHAED
RO - AARERA - WRKECIRBES GG
EBBFMTLERECLHOERBER - B
—E—+F=Z A=+ BEAARARRDHERS
EWOER

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2017, other than the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

HERITH

BREERSG

ZEREE BEMBE DL

Number of Percentage of total

ordinary shares issued voting shares

REARAT Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(1) (Note 1)

REMERR AR Tian Teck Land Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(#£1)(Note 1)

$EIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 25,589,715 7.11%
(72)(Note 2)

WE#E Lim Yoke Soon 25,589,715 711%
(72)(Note 2)

G Notes:

(1) REEGESRGIEI36 IR falr MR s AR Bl
MR - KABBRARMEEN SRR HERR
X B FEA9180,030,681 AL A HEIR -

@ EEMEEFTREORGEREBRLIHEYN
25,589,715 ik 13 1B [R] = 7£25,589,715 AR 5 4 -
24,555,71508 BBIB M £ F5E - 1,084,000 Al &
HEABMHEBLZ LA -

B Lt priEES R E—+FE=A=+—8 "
AN BN R A B B ] E A R AR R

F 336 kM AR TR ER MR R T IRMDFIEE
[P E R SOA R ©

(1) The register of interests and short positions in shares kept under section 336 of
the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by Tian Teck Investment Holding
Co., Limited is the same as the 180,030,681 shares disclosed by Tian Teck
Land Limited.

2) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is the same as the 25,589,715
shares disclosed by Ms Lim Yoke Soon. Out of the 25,589,715 shares,
24,555,715 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, and 1,034,000 shares
were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, no other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

have been notified to the Company.
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EEHERS - THRENNAR

ARTE] - ERRR]SIERBERSETE S 80
BRR > RAFEEANIDRB L HNFER LA
FEEMNSHELEFEEMNAARESHER
BRZENER (R E B E(ARIEDI)EA861EPT
HHER)ERIEEEAEANENEER S
LHHEL -

BiE EmRAIZE13.51B(1)FE 2R
EMm{EL
HREMSHEBEERIHmMES - TINESHRE
E-E—tF=ZA=+—RHILFEZESH N
E—MBFELE RS

— @B AE e AE2,311,0000T ¢ 12
InE#51,0007T ©

— EIEMELEZBE AEYS,469,0007T ¢
A #1,077,000 7T © TE 7 5 3,469,000 7T
o 12,837,000 (ZE—NF : B
3,169,0007T ) ;2 HZ4E St A AR A R gt EL i E
EEIPETNRISE M o

— EEL A ZBE AEEE1,954,0000T ¢ B
D HE37 0007 °

— EXBEEEZE KRB 22260007
2 )0 7 5 38,000 7T © 1 & # 2,226,000 7T
o 1,820,000 (ZE— R F B
1,772,0007T ) = 1248 5t A AR R B L H
WELRFITNRB A OMZ

— EIRR/MAZ S AE%1,362,0007T ¢ 15
InB#767,0005T °

BELR AEE) - ARBEXNAGRER LK
BURIME LY

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company, its parent company or controlling shareholders or any of their
respective subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with him (within the meaning of section 486 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) had a material interest (whether directly
or indirectly), was entered into in the year or subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

Due to allowances for expenses actually incurred, the directors’ emoluments
of the following directors for the year ended 31 March 2017 have changed

when compared with those for the last financial year:

- Mr Cheong Hooi Hong’s emoluments increased by HK$51,000 to
HK$2,311,000.

- Mr Cheong Kheng Lim’s emoluments decreased by HK$1,077,000 to
HK$3,469,000, of which, HK$2,837,000 (2016: HK$3,169,000) was
covered by his service contract with the Company as chief operation

officer.

- Mr Cheong Keng Hooi's emoluments decreased by HK$37,000 to
HK$1,954,000.

— Mr Cheong Sim Lam’s emoluments increased by HK$38,000 to
HK$2,226,000, of which, HK$1,820,000 (2016: HK$1,772,000) was
covered by his service contract with the Company as chief investment

officer.

— Miss Cheong Chong Ling’s emoluments increased by HK$767,000 to
HK$1,362,000.

Despite the above changes, the Company’s policy regarding the said

expenses has not changed.

Annual Report 2016-2017 &%}

63



64

BEEHRE Directors’ Report

EEHWIE
BRADREFHEAEE (BT AT
BODZER)REAN  LERBRE-T—+LF
= A=A EREEEAR

AN
]

BEEEH
@ ARFRERBRAT — KEHEARAT
ST BRI BRS R I TR i o

RIEZE S - ARBRE ALK RRE
TR e T A R E RS RAEFEST
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁTmﬁﬁz&m&ﬁéoﬁﬁu
REE-ZF—+F=A=1+—HLFER
EH&ZHXE’\JHEF‘;%’%%%%EZ%‘}%%LZO0,000TE
(ZZF—7"F : ##1,200,0007T) °

(b) $ R ERITYEEREFRAR([HE
BT T EB%H o IREBGE - BiER
TEAEERESN —REFRMEER
(A ERENRBRIBRIN) - ZEEHED
H-Z——F N \ABREHT+_MEA -
HEKeFanEs XA R AGHH#
Wit -BE-_T—tF=A=+—81
FE  ARABINOEBEEWNE BAK
600,0007T( =Z—7~4F : ##600,0007T) °

o

B LAl PRt R E SN - AR BIRAEE AN B

R AEAEBEBREPERLINER
BHy -

Indemnity of Directors
A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in

force and was in force throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Management Contracts

(@) The Company has an administrative services agreement and also
a non-administrative services agreement, each for an indefinite
period, with its immediate holding company, Tian Teck Land Limited,
whereby the Company agrees to provide, respectively, company
secretarial services (under the administrative services agreement) and
office space and various staff (under the non-administrative services
agreement). The aggregate fees received by the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2016:
HK$1,200,000).

(b) A management agreement exists between the Company and DTZ
Cushman & Wakefield Property Management Limited (“DTZ”) whereby
DTZ is responsible for general building and property management
(except for the services relating to tenancy) of iISQUARE. The
management agreement was renewed for a term of twelve months
commencing on 6 August 2012 and shall be automatically renewed
on an annual basis thereafter, subject to the right of termination
by the Company. Manager’s remuneration of HK$600,000 (2016:
HK$600,000) was paid by the Company for the year ended 31 March
2017.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.
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EE&E Fixed Assets
REEBRREWENT : Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:
HERGERBEYZE Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation
i B RERR HEFH
Location Existing use Term of lease
BlfR E S (T REMANENRAE) BB ]
NBERPIERBCE ST =%
(NLEERHhER 742557 )
iISQUARE (exclude an office on 9th Floor) Shopping centre Medium

63 Nathan Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

IHETERE THERIFBM AR
HNABERL - — AR K

HRLT ~ L2~ L3N LAR &L

REEBETRE-EEA%R

(BB AR 2255 )
Good Luck Industrial Building Workshops and Medium
Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor, car parking spaces

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,

105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

BEZ S0 PRE R
T

ERETHERT=ETHRR

BEHEF_T—E_T=%

(55 1B 36655 )

Euro Trade Centre Offices Long
5th Floor,

Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and

Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

(Marine Lot No. 366)
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RANTRIFRE
ERAMTFARAEHZ EHREAATEES
AT BEATHRASBAL  AAT—EAH
EHRATRZ ARSHRE -

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s revenue attributable to the largest customer
and to the five largest customers accounted for 12% and 32% of the
Group’s total revenue respectively. The five largest suppliers of the Group

accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year have the directors, their close associates or any
member of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any

interest in these major customers.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2017 are set out in notes 20 to 22 to the financial statements.

Retirement Schemes
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 25 to the financial

statements.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$239,000 (2016: HK$1,287,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities
There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.
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Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 139 to 140 of the annual report.

Auditor

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

HITES

EEBERE 705 0 AR — A\ NEH
—NN\ZFRIEHEARR T MREERR A A
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R ARBMNESTMAEE B R INE ST
@& 8 - WA RIMRoyal Melbourne Institute of
Technology ¥ RHSUR © B EERE I
EOEERNEEFEREGEAT TFHEFL
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MEEBEZHRENILE
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WERARAPIRLEZEGNXE  ARTARE
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BEMELERERERBELL EFBEMELLE
NEBRELARMEENNS  TABEFERI/NE
SRR ©

ERBLELE 645 HHR—NANTFEM
—NAN=FFREEARRMRIEHERTR QA
BF MERARAREKE  ANTAREAR
REAMAEEZHNBARES - BEEHAE
BRABPTHEERS LB -

BEELEREREREAL  EFEEMEL
MNEEBZHIRENILE o

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 70 has been the Chairman and a director
of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983
respectively. He currently is the Chief Executive Officer and the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. He
is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various
subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is a member of both the CPA Australia
and the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. He holds a
diploma from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Commerce. He
has extensive experience in property development and investment both in

Hong Kong and Singapore for over 50 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 68, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1984. He has been the Deputy Chairman
and a director of Tian Teck Land Limited since 1983 and 1969 respectively.
He currently is the Chief Operation Officer of the Company and a member
of the nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited.
Mr Cheong is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

and various subsidiaries in the Group.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 64, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Project Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong
holds a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration from the University of

Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Sim Lam.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 58, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Investment Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck
Investment Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. He
obtained a certificate in Accounting and General Business from Kapiolani

Community College, Hawaii and has over 37 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Keng Hooi.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 46, joined the Company as an assistant
to directors in 1997. She has been a director of the Company and Tian
Teck Land Limited since 2007. She is the Chief Administration Officer of the
Company. Miss Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of Science from the

School of Hotel Administration at Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director.

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 81, has been a director of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1985 and 1984 respectively. He
currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Sin is a solicitor and holds a
degree of Master of Arts from the University of Cambridge. He was Chairman
of Kam Ngan Stock Exchange from 1985 to 1986. He was also a former
Chairman of the Home Ownership Scheme Committee and the Management
Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority and a former member of the

Urban Council and the Executive Committee of the Housing Society.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 61, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee (as chairman), remuneration
committee (as chairman) and nomination committee (as member) of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Chow has significant experience
in accounting and finance and has been an Associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 1983 and an Associate
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia since 1988 and is a

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 76, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Yau
has extensive legal knowledge and experience. He qualified as a barrister
in England in 1964 and practised as an advocate and solicitor in Singapore
and Malaysia, and as an advocate in the State of Brunei before coming to
Hong Kong. Mr Yau was admitted to Hong Kong Bar in 1985 and practised as
a barrister until 2001.

Mr Lee Chung, aged 43, has been an independent non-executive director of
the Company since 2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr Lee holds a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering from Colorado
School of Mines in the United States and a MBA degree from the University
of Warwick in the United Kingdom. He has extensive experience in venture

capital and property investment in the United States, Israel and PRC.
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AEEAE Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Manage

Senior Management

Miss Chan Mei Yee, CPA, aged 40, is the accounting manager of
the Company. She holds an honours degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration and a degree of Master of Arts from City University of Hong
Kong. She has nearly 17 years of experience in accounting and auditing.
Prior to joining the Company in 2004, she worked for one of the big four

accounting firms.

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 66, joined the Company in 1987 and
has been the financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Company,
Miss Chan was a chief accountant of the Company’s ultimate holding
company. She has over 37 years of experience in accounting and financial

management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 60, joined the Group in 1981 and has been the

Company’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 47, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Company in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members
of Associated International Hotels Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Associated
International Hotels Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 79 to 138, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2017, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2017 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.
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BARREL SR

PAREZFEERERMANERAE - RAYHAR
HEAMBHREANECRAERNER - ELF
HARAERMECERFAMBHRRREAZAR
EITRED - BT EHELFTREHREBNE

8o in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

these matters.

REYENGE

Valuation of investment properties

R A B IRAN T 12 R @5 BRI 1(0) »

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 1(d).

BRERSEE
The key audit matter

EMHELNMEREZSR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEENEEFAYAREYSE - BEREMENTZEK
o AEKES - BEESUESSADNE - 2—@5REA1%
LREDHD -

The Group holds a portfolio of investment properties
located in Hong Kong. The principal component of the
Group’s investment properties is ISQUARE, a shopping and

entertainment complex located in Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong.

B ERIFINE Y E (L E R IRR A 8 IR PTHETTHI (A
B FERENENAAEE -

Management’s assessment of the fair value of investment
properties is based on valuations performed by an external
property valuer in accordance with recognised industry

standards.

REMELENED —BRREDAZRFENPNES I
A FRIRERE R EETEENLEMNR -

One of the key drivers of the valuation of investment
properties is rental income which can be volatile, particularly
in light of the current economic status of the retail industry in

Hong Kong.

BB REMEAENEZEFEEATER
Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of investment

properties included the following:

. FHEIMNE Y ERERMB ER R AR EGENERLE
FHB - AP T BRI AELE
assessing the qualifications of the external property
valuer, their experience and expertise in the properties

being valued and their objectivity and independence;

. RS HREmEEEEENINEHERMSERETER
EMEN AR EEMRENHERS
obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared
by the external property valuer engaged by the Group on
which the management’s assessment of the fair value of

investment properties was based;

. BN EMAmEGERERGERARANEER
SHREE
discussing with the external property valuer the valuation
methodology and key estimates and assumptions

adopted in the valuations;
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Eaf@%*i%lﬁ(g) Key Audit Matters (Continued)

REMENGE

Valuation of investment properties

DA R IR 12 R @FHBE N 1(d) ©

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 1(d).

BREZSER
The key audit matter

BMNERNWEEZSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BZMEEEENREMELENRAREZEER  BRKE
MEGMEFEEASLIEKRD - WABEERNHEMME -
femigmn T st E IR EEAER LER -

We identified valuation of the Group’s investment properties
as a key audit matter because the valuation of investment
properties is inherently subjective and requires significant
judgement and estimation which increases the risk of error or

potential management bias.

. EHRMONBDEREAENBRET - FHEINEYEME
BERVFTER AR A ET A -
with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, evaluating the valuation methodology applied

by the external property valuer;

. BBLBINEMEAEMESREMEAETHRANET
Z b5t KRR HEA] B 8 T I5 80 & BB R 2 T 54
FTEUE - YEERATRAN E EEETARR (BFEEARL
b BOTOmSESMA RN T SR 5) IRHE 5
challenging the key estimates and assumptions adopted
in the valuations, including capitalisation rates, prevailing
market rents and comparable market transactions, by
comparing the key estimates and assumptions used
by the external property valuer in the valuation of each
investment property with market available data and

government produced market statistics;

. ERANER - HBHEERES - BEAEEEmINE
EEEMRHNFARFEE S REBEX - ARBEEEL R
X MHRRE o
comparing, on a sample basis, the tenancy information,
including committed rents and occupancy rates,
provided by the Group to the external property valuer

with underlying contracts and documentation.
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Information Other Than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence

and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

related safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Ho Wai Ming.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2017
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mEeEaRkHEMBEIRAR
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
BE-Z—tHE=A=+—BILEE(UE%DI’R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
Bzt T Tt
Note $°000 $°000
ON Revenue 3 661,677 667,214
ARFE AL A Cost of services (82,343) (81,043)
ER Gross profit 579,334 586,171
Hablg A Other revenue 5 6,606 4,430
Hth B85 58 Other net loss 5 6) (14)
THER Administrative expenses (36,968) (38,141)
REVELESSH Profit from operations before valuation
RSy changes in investment properties 548,966 552,446
REMEGBEER),/ Net valuation (losses)/gains on investment
AR5 properties 12(a) (614,894) 412,285
REYEMLEEHE (Loss)/profit from operations after
HEE (B518), 5T valuation changes in
investment properties (65,928) 964,731
A AR Finance costs 6(a) (3,374) (2,458)
BRBLAT (E51E) %R (Loss)/profit before taxation 6 (69,302) 962,273
TSR Income tax 9(a) (89,813) (90,904)
A EES R EN (Loss)/profit and total comprehensive
AEE(ER),HE income for the year attributable to
EE2HEKRAERE equity shareholders of the Company (159,115) 871,369
sR(ER) &R (Loss)/earnings per share
— BEXR#EE — basic and diluted 11 $(0.44) $2.42

F8EEF138EMMFBAMIBIHREA—3H The notes on pages 85 to 138 form part of these financial statements.
BT R Bl R R AR B FE B SIS AT EE10 © Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company are set

out in note 10.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-ZZB—tHF=A=+—H(UBE%TIR) At 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
Bzt Fr T
Note $’000 $'000
FEREBEE Non-current assets
BEE&E Fixed assets 12(a)
— REME — Investment properties 14,031,470 14,646,230
— HEME - REKEKE — Other properties, plant and equipment 71,966 78,407
14,103,436 14,724,637
REBEE Current assets
FEUEREX ~ 51 RFENRR Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments 14 21,632 20,580
BRI T Pledged bank deposits 15 134,981 161,791
HERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 16 385,602 338,250
542,115 520,621
RENBE Current liabilities
IRITER — HEM Bank loan — secured 20 - 200,000
Hib AR EREF Other payables and accruals 17 16,719 20,398
EET® Deposits received 18 195,213 204,307
REIRS & %45 Provision for long service payments 19 1,513 1,581
B E T E R IE Obligations under finance leases 21 29 29
AERFEETS R Current tax payable 9(c) 19,849 23,017
233,323 449,332
REBEERE Net current assets 308,792 71,289
EEAERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 14,412,228 14,795,926
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITER — BEA Bank loan — secured 20 200,000 =
FENBUTHE Government lease premiums payable 22 1,920 1,980
A e Obligations under finance leases 29 46 75
BELERIRAE Deferred tax liabilities 9(d) 62,298 54,792
264,264 56,847
EEFE NET ASSETS 14,147,964 14,739,079
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HEBEMRRE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZB—tHF=A=+—H(UB%IIR) At 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
BtaE Fr T
Note $°000 $'000

EXR G CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23
&N Share capital 23(b) 360,000 360,000
e Reserves 13,787,964 14,379,079
ESAE TOTAL EQUITY 14,147,964 14,739,079

BEeN T —tF A=/ \AfofErRFa B - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2017.

EE 2 Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE SEEM Director Director

FBLEEF138ENWEBAMIEHREN—3D The notes on pages 85 to 138 form part of these financial statements.
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REERBER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z—tF=A=1+—HBLFE (B R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

DRERRRERN
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
B EfhfRE REB R EEAH
Share  Revaluation Retained Total
capital reserve earnings equity
FisE T T T T
Note $'000 $000 $000 $°000
R2015F4 A1 B & Balance at 1 April 2015 360,000 1,778,150 12,161,560 14,299,710
AEEEREE Changes in equity for the year:
RELHA R 2HEWALEZ  Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year — — 871,369 871,369
B E—BBFEIENE Dividends approved in respect of
the previous financial year 10(b) — — (216,000) (216,000)
EBRAHEETIRMALE  Dividends declared in respect of
the current financial year 10(a) — — (216,000) (216,000)
R2016F3A31H R Balance at 31 March 2016 and
201654 81 BV &ERR 1 April 2016 360,000 1,778,150 12,600,929 14,739,079
KEEEREE Changes in equity for the year:
AEEEEREZHEWALEZE  Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year - - (159,115) (159,115)
B F—BTEEE#ERARE  Dividends approved in respect of
the previous financial year 10(b) - - (216,000) (216,000)
BRAGHEETIRMALE  Dividends declared in respect of
the current financial year 10(a) - - (216,000) (216,000)
R2017563A31 H AR Balance at 31 March 2017 360,000 1,778,150 12,009,814 14,147,964

F8EEF 18BN EBAMIEHREN —3H -

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T

The notes on pages 85 to 138 form part of these financial statements.



mERERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-ZE—tHE=A=+—BLLEE(UE%DI’R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
Pt s Frx Tt
Note $°000 $'000
RETEE Operating activities
BREBLAT(EIE),SEF (Loss)/profit before taxation (69,302) 962,273
FEIER - Adjustments for:
— N WA — Interest income (3,806) (3,155)
— BEKA — Finance costs 3,374 2,458
—hE — Depreciation 6,993 7,344
— REMEGHERE — Net valuation losses/(gains)
(&F)F8 on investment properties 614,894 (412,285)
— REBETEEEIEFRE — Net loss on disposals of fixed assets 7 14
EEESBBAIKERT Operating profit before changes in
working capital 552,160 556,649
FEUWBRTN « 5]& RFANTF (Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable,

(3&hn), R deposits and prepayments (819) 4,010
HiEM R LB EMMA  Decrease in other payables and accruals (3,379) (1,448)
EUETE OR ), (Decrease)/increase in deposits received (9,094) 5,995
RHIRTG S E/ORL), /18I0 (Decrease)/increase in provision for long

service payments (68) 147
JESTBURT H (DR Decrease in government lease premiums

payable (57) (54)
BEEBERBHRS Cash generated from operations 538,743 565,299
BTIA Tax paid
— BEREENEE — Hong Kong profits tax paid (85,475) (83,530)
RETHMBNRSTFE Net cash generated from

operating activities 453,268 481,769
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#EREFRER Consolidated Staterment of Cash Flows
BE-Z—tF=A=1+—HBLFE (B R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
BtaE Fr Tt
Note $°000 $'000
RETEE Investing activities
AL ERIRS) Interest received 3,673 3,139
BABTEEEMNK Payment for purchase of fixed assets
(T BEEREDSE) other than investment properties (559) (258)
BB DR Payment for expenditure on investment
properties (584) (3,430)
DR ITEZORND (3G HN)  Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 26,810 (9,073)
BRETBFE(FAN Net cash generated from/(used in)
HeFE investing activities 29,340 (9,622)
A& E B Financing activities
EMNREMRERESEARED Capital element of finance lease rentals paid (29) 29)
2 BT HE TS Interest paid on government lease
premiums payable (102) (109)
EMIRITERFE Interest paid on bank loan (2,153) (2,150)
BT A S R AR Other borrowing costs paid (972) (250)
EXRE Dividends paid (432,000) (432,000)
RMETBRMANRE RS Net cash used in financing activities (435,256) (434,534)
RERBRSEEYIEMFEHR Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 47,352 37,613
72016/2015F4 1B K Cash and cash equivalents
RERREEEY at 1 April 2016/2015 338,250 300,637
A3A3NANESE Cash and cash equivalents
RREZEY at 31 March 16 385,602 338,250

F8EEF 18BN EBAMIEHREN —3H - The notes on pages 85 to 138 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % %) R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1
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Bl A & MR B0 AT A B R R ERIKE B
M mEEL) (BB GFHLERIDA
2E) FEARGHRAUMEEA
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R B REUA e 45 L B AR SR B4 R
I B BRI 75 Sk RO ZE R 4L
Al B A AE &5t BB & 5T I
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1

Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by

the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESTBR 1
(b) RIFEIRE E@éﬁ%gﬁ

W E-TtF=A=1+BLFE
E’\J,ﬁ/*\ﬁ\ﬁ*%&i’%ﬁ%$’&ﬁﬂ%|‘ﬁ%
Bl (Rl A kE ) -

BRPMRET(d) AT Bk A & ST ERR PR RS AR Y
REMERZAABEARIN - FE

AR BERERUE LR AR E
ey

e (EAPHREERDOM B IHRE

e BEEEARTEBRNER
REREE  BE - WAMHOHK
RRVEH HIE  EETARER - BLEfhT
THERRERBATEBRNERE
REERBEARRAIENZHEMEA
REHR) - HERBK T EEEEE

AR BEMEEARSMEERBE
AR (E R TR L M O 7 - IR
FIREA RN A AT 2R -

B [ & MR B IR AT AR R

R MREFEFNETRARRE
X—HRE  EFEFerxNHNE

R REFTEE AR KRS E
72 - BlEfEEEET AV HAR AN AR SR EA
FAER °

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment properties are stated at their fair value as explained

in the accounting policies set out in note 1(d).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(©

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive

rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see

note 1(h)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(f)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in note 1(p)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(f)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(f).

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see note 1(g)) and impairment

losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.



(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

EER = n-l-l—t& (48)

(f)

HEEE
WMRAEEE-BLH(BRE-EX
S5 —RINR B ) HETE RS 5 E B
WAy U EEEMNE AR
BB —EREZENK - QIERLH
EBRHEE —HHEE - BERZMN
HEBTHNBEMEERE M
TEBRRHED S MHEM AR
iz

) FTEBEHEEENDE

HRAEBNEERAENE
B mREEEMBAERNBA
BoRRMEBEREARE
B BEMNEEESSBRMN
BEMERE MRBEETE
A BERENBRIY BRI
BEBEAKE - RIDBEAK
EHE  BTIERE

—  MRAHERBEEHM
FEEFERENETESE
WYX SRBEEDE
EES A RIREME -
MRS ATEYE  H
ANEF RS IFE AR EH
ERB(2HME1(d)—
=N

—  NURREERHEEN B
AT HERRRBEA
AEEEENE FREE
ME A BESHAGED
THRIRARERERE
ARAR BB AR
EHERANEEDR
She BUEME - HERIFH
IR EEEAREE RG]
SR B RTETEA
BEUGER LT -

1

B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(d)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.

Annual Report 2016-2017 Fik

89



90

(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T

SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(i

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are recognised
as fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(g). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(h)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property (see note 1(d)).
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B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other

properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

— Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 40
years after the date of completion

— Furniture, fixtures 5 years
and equipment
— Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of accounts and other receivables
Accounts and other receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

= significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

)

Impairment of accounts and other receivables
(Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

= For accounts and other receivables carried
at amortised cost, the impairment losses of
bad and doubtful debts are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.
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B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

)

Impairment of accounts and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of accounts receivable, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that other properties, plant and equipment and
investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased.
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% BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESHHBER@ 1 Significant Accounting Policies continued)
(h) EBEBRE®E (h) Impairment of assets (Continued)
iy HtBEEREGE) (i)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)

MREBREMEEDR - BIZ If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

BEMAINEIEES TG - amount is estimated.

—  FEAIKDEERE —  Calculation of recoverable amount
BEMINEEEEAEA The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
REEREEEK AR of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
BEBEMEFREEME in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
AR & A% - E51HE future cash flows are discounted to their present
FREER - 2FHAKRK value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
RIHTIR G R RIS current market assessments of the time value of
MEWFBEERE - ZITH money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
e R TS E R FTETE an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
M EEREBBENZE independent of those from other assets, the
ENBERK - MREE recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
FTEARNRSRARERE group of assets that generates cash inflows
NN EMEEMES independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
MIRSRA - BIAREIE L
EEReRANRNEE
FERI(ANIR S EEETT) K
& A KBl BEE o

—  ERREEE —  Recognition of impairment losses
INREENMBREES An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
BrmEREESRETK if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
E#EER - FEEiEaF generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
ERBEEE - RRESE its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
EETERE B EEE recognised in respect of cash-generating units
SR OIR L ZE T (3 are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
ZMABE L) NEEMNERE®R assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
B BEEMNEEETS basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
WO EEREBERNARE will not be reduced below its individual fair value
BEREREKNEE less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(Wngest= ) HFEHAE (if determinable).

BE(INEEETE)
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B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(h)(i)
and (ii)).

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(h)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees

payable, using the effective interest method.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

K)

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated

statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs

involving the payment of termination benefits.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

Annual Report 2016-2017 Fik

Sl



98

SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESTTBXR @) 1
(n) FrEHi@)
TreR AR Lﬁﬁé%ﬂﬁL%ﬁm
2R 2EE AU TERAFISME
%%@ﬁ&ﬁﬁmﬂ%ﬁ?&ﬁ
1 0 )08 T 2 (40 BB B2 T 1 — B
DRIBIN) - ARBEMBEAT (WE
FERER - QR A E A e
&R R - T B AT T R BT A
AL EE MRS 2R ¢ st B A KN
28 QIR RRRA S S E
£2).

P TR BRI 51 (d) P st MO & 5T ERGR A
AR EEARNIREYE - FIERE
B IBEEIRBRBREN RS A
ZEBENAREDAEDERIZERN
MEEITETE - RIEZYWERAIITE
EUA—EmERARE - MR8
B 82 5 18 1 T2 BE S FDE 8 Z
MEFMBENBREDEER S o
RETBEAMIER - ETERIESERIE
BREENBERDEMNEHERIE
BRI - REBEERITRERSE LK
%E%Eiﬁﬁ”%ﬁ%ﬁﬁoﬁﬁ
BMIBEEMAEY TR

AEE LG ERE IR KL BEHE
REHEEENREDE - MRAEE
TEHANF A BE 1S R S H FEBLE T LA
EINHRENT SRS - ZECHEE
Emﬁﬁﬁ@@ﬁﬁ:@%m%aé

BLIES RAMERLEF] - BER
aﬁﬁ?éﬁﬁq[] o

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(d), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable

that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.
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B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.
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% BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESTBER@® 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(s) FEEER (s) Related parties
@ —BALTHIZALTHRELR (@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
WREEASEWNBEB T - W related to the Group if that person:
BAAT
) HEREEHEGIERER ()  has control or joint control over the Group;

I

iy HEAEEHERFZES (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
£

(i) RAEERAEERFANT] (i) is a member of the key management personnel of
MEEREEIEAS - the Group or the Group’s parent.

b)) —EAERNFTAEM I E ()  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

o Bt A2 AN B A RE B conditions applies:

5o

() ZEEHEASEHAER ()  The entity and the Group are members of the
—SEMNKE(AZEA same group (which means that each parent,
7] « WEARMRE ZHE subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
NEF LA ) others).

iy —ATERES—EREA (i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
BRadaEtE(E other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
B—ERBEEETK member of a group of which the other entity is a
BEMBERTHE & member).
EJK

iy METEHRR—F=H (i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
ME &P - party.

ivy —EEERFE=HFEEN (v)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

¥ ME—EEE the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
AN

|
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% B EME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(s) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in ().

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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% BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(t) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.

Changes in Accounting Policies
The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of

these, the following amendments are relevant to the Group:

— Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

— Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods

have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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% B EME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Revenue

The principal activity of the Group is property investment.

Revenue represents gross rental income received and receivable from

investment properties.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue. During the year, revenue from this customer amounted to

approximately $77,251,000 (2016: $82,545,000).

Segment Information
The Group has a single reportable segment which is “Property
leasing”. Accordingly, the business segment information for this sole

reportable segment is equivalent to the consolidated figures.

No separate geographical information is presented as the Group’s

revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong.

Other Revenue and Net Loss

2017 2016
Fr Fir
$°000 $'000

Ht A Other revenue
FBUA Interest income 3,806 3.155
IR A AR B R & A Management fee received from holding company 1,200 1,200
BRI S FTES R EE Compensation from early termination of lease 1,005 =
Hit Others 595 75
6,606 4,430

Hihg58 558 Other net loss
NS W R SRR Net foreign exchange gains 1 —
RERETEERIEFHE Net loss on disposals of fixed assets 7 (14)
(6) (14)

Annual Report 2016-2017 &3 105



SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 BRBiAI(EE),mF

BREiAT(E1R), aFIE R, (GEA) :

6 (Loss)/Profit Before Taxation

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2017 2016
T T
$°000 $'000
(@) ®ERAK (@)  Finance costs
RITERF B Interest on bank loan 2,304 2,104
RSB BB T B Interest on government lease premiums
payable 100 103
E A fE TR Other borrowing costs 970 251
3,374 2,458
(b) BIMEE (b)  Staff costs
e TEREMEF Salaries, wages and other benefits 41,911 41,402
RERFERIKRET B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,201 1,338
43,112 42,740
(c) EHtEB ()  Otheritems
KEMENHS KA Gross rental income from investment
ek properties (661,677) (667,214)
B B Less: Direct outgoings 82,343 81,043
(579,334) (586,171)
%A & Auditor’s remuneration
— ZHAR — audit services 739 739
— B ARTES — tax services 56 56
— HAb R — other services 182 182
e Depreciation 6,993 7,344
R R EEE Impairment losses on accounts receivable - 323
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% B EME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EEMe 7 Directors’ Emoluments
RIEEBCR BMEBI Y 383(1) i M A &) (# Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
TE ENEERN RGP YE 2205 R a) = B Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
ST : (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:
E 2 A= 3: BIRETE 2017
EEwe KREYANZR BETEAL it wE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
Fr Fr Frx Fr Fr
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
BITES Executive Directors
SIEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,561 700 - 2,311
EEB=PYN Cheong Kheng Lim 50 2,719* 700 - 3,469
SE M Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,604 300 - 1,954
B4 Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,876 300 - 2,226
B Cheong Chong Ling 50 1,171 120 21 1,362
FHITES Non-executive Director
boziclic] Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 - - 430
BT Independent Non-executive
2 Directors
AEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 - - - 170
%hES Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 - - - 170
=3VN Lee Chung 170 - - - 170
810 9,311 2,120 21 12,262
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% BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 ESEME @ 7
1B BB A AR B383(1) IE R A 7l (1
BEEFAER ) AP E MR E E W
S0 : ()

Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as

follows: (Continued)

e o FERL RINETHE 2016
BEEMe REDIR BIEAEAL R 4R
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’”  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
T+t Tt Tt T+t Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $’000 $'000
HITES Executive Directors
eyl Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,510 700 — 2,260
SEIBHN Cheong Kheng Lim 50 3,796* 700 — 4,546
=i Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,641 300 — 1,991
fizikede] Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,838 300 — 2,188
$EERS Cheong Chong Ling 50 404 120 21 595
FHITEE Non-executive Director
ARG Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 — — 430
BT Independent Non-executive
) Directors
A= Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 — — — 170
=5 Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 = = = 170
= Lee Chung 170 = = = 170
810 9,569 2,120 21 12,520
* EHEITEEMEEMRCERBEEEDE & The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential

HIEF] - AT FAE A £ 49752,898,000 7T
(ZZ—7<%F : 3,210,0007T)

properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental
value of approximately $2,898,000 (2016: $3,210,000).
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% B EME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 EBoEAx

—=

—=

MIFE7 ©

9 FREH
GEeBEmEkEMEERKRAR (@) Taxation in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive

(@)

FRREIPRISBIIES

NER—_Z—LFFERURDME
MATHRARBNES - AR &R

8 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
The five highest paid individuals for 2016 and 2017 are all directors of

9 Income Tax

income represents:

the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

2017 2016
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
AHFIE — HBFEHR Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax
REFERIIEEE Provision for the year 82,379 83,263
A EAEERT Over-provision in respect of prior years 72 (40)
82,307 83,223
EEHIE Deferred tax
i = R E A e Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 7,506 7,681
89,813 90,904

EAFEREBREAFEMMGE
FEST R % M LA16.5% ( —ZF — /N4 -

16.5% )T RETE -

Annual Report 2016-2017 Fik

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5%

(2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
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% BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 FISFH@

9 Income Tax (continued)

(b) PTEBZHMIZER f’ RE (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax

E—Eﬂ-l-(EE?E /\w*l 0F)]

rate:

2017 2016
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
BREEAT(EHR),m T (Loss)/profit before taxation (69,302) 962,273
1%28816.5% (20164 : 16.5%) Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation,
BT RSt E R AT calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)
(E51B),mAeEEHIE (11,434) 158,775
TRIHR S AR IE 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 101,718 521
BAET RN ENFIATE Tax effect of non-taxable income (399) (68,352)
N FEEERT Over-provision in prior years (72) (40)
EERHES S Actual tax expense 89,813 90,904
) #HREMBEAMRREKAMRNAE (c) Current taxation in the consolidated
RrEHA : statement of financial position represents:
2017 2016
T T
$°000 $'000
REEBEFESHER Provision for Hong Kong profits tax
for the year 82,379 83,263
BT NS Provisional profits tax paid (62,530) (60,246)
RNERFEAS P IS RS Current tax payable 19,849 23,017
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(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 mMEH @

(d)

CHRRELERERRE
B A MBIRRRER OETERIE
AENERBANIEFEZHOT :

9 Income Tax (continued)

(d) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

BBAEETE
MIFERBE
Depreciation
allowances

in excess of
the related

depreciation

Fr
$°000

RETHIFENELESE Deferred tax arising from:
R2015F4H1H At 1 April 2015 47,111
EiEET R Charged to profit or loss 7,681
R2016%F3A31H At 31 March 2016 54,792
M2016F481H At 1 April 2016 54,792
Pk Eataskii[i33 Charged to profit or loss 7,506
201793 HA31H At 31 March 2017 62,298
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 K2
@ AEEMMATDEES

/N

IR R AR

10 Dividends

(@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the year

2017 2016
Fr Tt
$000 $'000
BEIREZ A HRE Interim dividend declared and paid of
&%0.607T $0.60 per share
(20164 : ®H%0.607T) (2016: $0.60 per share) 216,000 216,000
RIS BRI E R R ER Final dividend proposed after the end of
DIk AHIE B &/%0.607T the reporting period of $0.60 per share
(20164 : &A%0.607T) (2016: $0.60 per share) 216,000 216,000
432,000 432,000

RS BRI B R ERED KA

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting

BEHMARERSHEAREBRR S period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
BifE - reporting period.

b) BRE-—UHFEEMNAT (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
FEERR > WRAARFEEHE of the Company attributable to the previous
REZAHRE financial year, approved and paid during the

year
2017 2016
Fr T
$°000 $'000
BR E—MEBFE Final dividend in respect of the previous
WA AR EER AN S H financial year, approved and paid during
R HARS B & A%0.607T the year, of $0.60 per share
(2016%F : #/%0.607T) (2016: $0.60 per share) 216,000 216,000

11 g(x&ﬂé)/&ﬂ—%ﬁ& 11
s
FREAEBEB(ZZE—XRF: 3BRER

BR)REBAFEMNL AR AR
15 B518 159,115,000 L ( =& — /)N F : i
A1 871,369,000 7T, ) K& B # 1T H) & @R
360,000, oooﬂx( =T — N4 : 360,000,000
B)FTE - —E—RNEFR_ZT—+tFIEH
TEAT B LAk

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T

(Loss)/Earnings Per Share — Basic and
Diluted

The calculation of basic loss per share (2016: earnings per share) is
based on the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of $159,115,000 (2016: a profit of $871,369,000) and 360,000,000
(2016: 360,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year. There
were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in existence in 2016 and
2017.



% B EME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 EEEE 12 Fixed Assets
(@) (@)
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
FER
EENE Hitty % HitgE et k]
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
i T i i i
$°000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000
A - Cost or valuation:
201654 B1H At 1 April 2016 14,646,230 100,464 34,192 134,656 14,780,886
B Additions 584 - 559 559 1,143
PN Cost adjustment (450) - - - (450)
RE Disposals - - (298) (298) (298)
AREERE Fair value adjustments (614,894) - - - (614,894)
2017434318 At 31 March 2017 14,031,470 100,464 34,453 134,917 14,166,387
e Representing:
BN Cost - 100,464 34,453 134,917 134,917
& — 20178  Valuation — 2017 14,031,470 - - — 14,031,470
14,031,470 100,464 34,453 134,917 14,166,387
BiHFE . Accumulated depreciation:
201654 B1H At 1 April 2016 - 27,528 28,721 56,249 56,249
KEEFITE Charge for the year — 3,444 3,549 6,993 6,993
BRERED Written back on disposals - - (291) (291) (291)
2017438318 At 31 March 2017 - 30,972 31,979 62,951 62,951
IREFE Net book value:
7201748 H31H At 31 March 2017 14,031,470 69,492 2,474 71,966 14,103,436
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% BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 EEEE @) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)
@ @@ (@ (continued)
REYE HEiy% - BB KR
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
(53-ZN
BEME HitE Hi&E g ek
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $'000

A fHE - Cost or valuation:

MR2015F4 318 At1 April 2015 14,232,730 100,464 34,048 134,512 14,367,242
HE Additions 1,415 = 258 258 1,673
AN F R Cost adjustment (200) - — = (200)
RE Disposals - - (114) (114) (114)
ANREEFAE Fair value adjustments 412,285 - - - 412,285
R20164E3A31H At 31 March 2016 14,646,230 100,464 34,192 134,656 14,780,886
K&K : Representing:
BAR Cost — 100,464 34,192 134,656 134,656
& — 20164  Valuation — 2016 14,646,230 - = — 14,646,230
14,646,230 100,464 34,192 134,656 14,780,886
Z5HiTE - Accumulated depreciation:
MR2015F4 418 At1 April 2015 - 24,084 24,921 49,005 49,005
AEEHE Charge for the year = 3,444 3,900 7,344 7,344
i B FF ] Written back on disposals — — (100) (100) (100)
MA201643H31H At 31 March 2016 — 27,528 28,721 56,249 56,249
REFE Net book value:
MR201643H31H At 31 March 2016 14,646,230 72,936 5,471 78,407 14,724,637
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% B EME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BEEEE @m 12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) BEMENAAEBEZ (b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties
RZE—+F=A=+—8 &EDY At 31 March 2017, investment properties comprise ISQUARE
¥BREERES(TREMLRNERN (exclude an office on 9th Floor), certain units of Good Luck
WMAE)  HEIERNEMNE TENMN Industrial Building and a floor of Euro Trade Centre. Other
REEE SR LE—E - HthES properties comprise an office on 9th Floor of ISQUARE, certain
BUREBNEBRESNLENRA units of an industrial property, and two residential properties in
= —BIERNEMNETEMN - &KW Hong Kong.

BEEWE -

() DBrEEER ()  Fair value hierarchy
THREVNNAEBNHEHARB KR The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
EHIRKE T EEMTENEKE investment properties measured at the end of the
% ¥DRhEE ZEWERE reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
BAR(E BT EHREER)D three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
F1R[ AR BEZ ITAED Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
“EAREEER - AEEZ measurement is classified is determined with reference
BB LA NEE AT A A to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
EMAEREEMEEZN - the valuation technique as follows:
MEE AR EBEFTEHEME
WARRER
— FEfHE: RFEAE —  Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
— BB AERET 2 Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
B AR TS NEREE active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
FABHREHERE) the measurement date
RetE QAR EE
— FIERMFEE:FRAFEZ= —  Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level
ERam AEBEBRES— 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
BRI ERBAE) - Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
W ARBEER 8 KA AR inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
R AERFEARE market data are not available
B - TAIBREH ABEE
IR RT3 B0 R B0 ) A (B
— F-EfMEE: KAEKR —  Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using
F R BR e AERGTE significant unobservable inputs
AREE
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BREYMENDEBETE @

) 2REEBRE

12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

AREBWEBUAABEFSE None of the Group’s investment properties measured
MITEMEREEE—ERAK at fair value are categorised into Level 1 and Level 2
F_EREE EREEE= valuations. The investment properties which are

BRMSENREDEINET

categorised into Level 3 valuations are analysed as

below:

2017 2016
F S
$°000 $'000
REEEEMGTEN Recurring fair value measurement
AREE
WEEEE=BRMEMELN  Investment properties categorised into
TEYE Level 3 valuations:
— MR BENEEDE — Commercial properties in Hong Kong 13,981,390 14,597,790
— MR BAENITEYE — Industrial properties in Hong Kong 50,080 48,440
14,031,470 14,646,230

REEZZ—+FR_T—RF
“A=+—BLFE TF—
MR — R AR
i MAREZBRINESEA
FEH AEEHNBRRER
R BEEHR 2 FHBEBZR®R
HHRRERRRERER -

During the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy

at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(i)

BREYENDEBETZE @

HERR
R-_E—+t&=A=+—8 "
MR EBRNZEMERH
B HEMERM — BISHTEE
T HEEARAR(EEIHR
EFESIEMBEEREE
ZEWR BEWEMRZWER
AL E RFTBERIA T EAE R
ZEEER)EITEM - B TYAE
Rl TERER - EEE
B Bk (B A & 5 72 %5 8 23 A0
FEREBETHENREM
HR o

FZERAAEBEFENE
£

AEBRBUREERE B
MERFESBAEAR - X
ZRIMELAXRREREM
AE 1R B ARTE S A M E
FEREN  NBEREDENDR
REE - EANTHERGBA

12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Valuation process

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued
at 31 March 2017 by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers
who have among their staff Fellows of The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued, on a
market value basis. Management has discussion with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim

and annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair value of investment properties was determined
using income capitalisation approach which capitalised
the net rental income of the properties and taking into
account the occupancy rate and reversionary income
potential of properties after the expiry of the current

leases. The significant unobservable inputs are set out

BEyEHAT below:
BAftRNEE HAENEE
Range of capitalisation rate Range of occupancy rate
RENE Investment properties 2017 2016 2017 2016
[INEBNEENE  Commerdial properties in Hong Kong 280%-5.00%  280%-500%  96.8%-100%  96.3%-100%
MIREBHIENE  Industrial properties in Hong Kong 4.00% 4,00% 100% 100%

KREMENAAEBEFERD
MR IELLREER - BREXR(
R LR -

The fair value measurement of investment properties
is positively correlated to the occupancy rate and

negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.
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12 EEEE@) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) BREVENLAEBETEZ @ (b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)
iy FEZEBHRAREBEF=EME @iy  Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
#HE) (Continued)
REBERNE=BRALEBELS The movements during the year in the balance of these
FRREBIIIT : Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows:
LRE B LRE B
[SEL/E S Ty
Commercial Industrial
properties in properties in
Hong Kong Hong Kong
Fr Frx
$000 $000
R2015F4A1H At 1 April 2015 14,184,490 48,240
BE Additions 1,415 —
AT B Cost adjustment (200) —
N BERE Fair value adjustments 412,085 200
7201653 H31H At 31 March 2016 14,597,790 48,440
R2016F4H1H At 1 April 2016 14,597,790 48,440
o Additions 584 -
AR Cost adjustment (450) —
DREEFE Fair value adjustments (616,534) 1,640
#201743A31H At 31 March 2017 13,981,390 50,080
REMENRA R BEFAREL Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
GEmRHAMEERARA K recognised in the line item “net valuation (losses)/gains
BEEGHE(ER) BFFE] on investment properties” on the face of the consolidated
HEFER AFERNEEDR statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
FHERNFAREZHERE income. All the valuation changes recognised in profit or
AEBRBREPHEKERRE loss for the year arise from the properties held at the end
Y%  ZEEEHReTE of the reporting period. The valuation changes will only
KEBTEE L8R T S E affect the accounting profit or loss but not the cash flow
B MASHERSREEK of the Group.
7
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(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BEEE@m)

©

YIREREFERN2TANT

(©

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:

2017 2016
Fr Fr
$°000 $°000

B In Hong Kong

— REFE — Long leases 118,680 119,101

— RHEE — Medium-term leases 13,982,282 14,600,065
14,100,962 14,719,166

HthEERIEEM  £E  BER
YUE o

NIBEREKRED  REBUARE
HESHENRAZRBEDFES
75,00070 (= Z—7<4F :104,0007T) ©

AEBUCEHEERLHIRENE - &
LEHESVABREETE W AE
HREBETEINHAZRESN  ENME
BRANEFREE - HE_T—t4F
=A=t+—HIEFEMNEETHERE
WA B ®A7,915000L(=ZF
—75%F © 18,696,0007T) °

NEEMERBEEEMTEANE
REVMEEENAENE  HELH
RIEME -

Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor

vehicles.

At the end of the reporting period, the net book value of office
equipment held under finance leases of the Group was $75,000
(2016: $104,000).

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time
all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised as
income in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2017

were $7,915,000 (2016: $13,696,000).

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.
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(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BEIEEE@m)

0 @
REBRBTAIRRAEZE

BRENNRERENREBABNT

12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(f) (Continued)

HEEH The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are receivables as follows:

2017 2016

5 Fr

$'000 $000

14ER Within 1 year 467,077 538,190

112 {B5F R After 1 year but within 5 years 318,630 561,428

785,707 1,099,618

() EEIKF (9) Pledge of assets

RIpEHRRER  RITERRIUE At the end of the reporting period, fixed assets with carrying

E 18 413,931,765,0007C (=& — <

£ 1 14,551,079,000 7T ) BJ
{EBIEIR(23MFE20) -

13 MEBLE

13 Subsidiaries

value of $13,931,765,000 (2016: $14,551,079,000) were

pledged to secure the bank loan (see note 20).

TRINEAEBFAENBRATE - BREE The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

ERENN - IR ARG AT R -

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

AR ERITRER HARREEN

DEER RiZEmE RAFFHE Frib st TEEH
Proportion of

Place of ownership

incorporation Particulars of issued and interest held by
Name of company and operation paid up capital the Company Principal activity
Associated International Resorts Limited o 2B MH 100% NER

Hong Kong 2 shares Inactive
HEBRAF EE 200,000 A& {7 100% NERE
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong 200,000 shares Property investment
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(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 BUHRFR ~ sT & RFBIRK

14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Prepayments

2017 2016

Fr T

$°000 $'000

FEWERRR Accounts receivable 12,817 15,749

W RIBRER Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

(MI7E14(b)) (note 14(b)) (1,575) (1,575)

11,242 14,174

HEISSELE N Deposits and prepayments 10,290 6,406

21,532 20,580

@ IREDT (@) Ageing analysis

RmEBEKER  BEERIKEE The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance
B2 RBEANRARNEWKERR(E for bad and doubtful debts) which was included in accounts

MR RZRER) AR DT T

: receivable, deposits and prepayments as of the end of the

reporting period is as follows:

2017 2016
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
iR Current 9,257 12,676
wERDME A Less than 1 month past due 1,190 1,453
BEA1 2= 31E B 1 to 3 months past due 779 19
61 BR R B3 (E A More than 3 months but less than
BLR121E A 12 months past due 16 26
By Amounts past due 1,985 1,498
11,242 14,174
RR—mEEAEEEH - EFER Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and
BH—RATRE+IHX - BHiEEUK 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
B - REBEEBREMFBYIH charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
RBIFE24(a) © in note 24(a).
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 RWERR ~ s RN @

(b) FEWHRFURIE
AEERREREEEEEHINT

) 14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments continued)
(b) Impairment of accounts receivable
3 The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

2017 2016

T Tt

$°000 $'000

72016/2015%4 A1H At 1 April 2016/2015 1,575 1,252

EERRBEERE Impairment losses recognised - 323

MN3H31H At 31 March 1,575 1,575
R-_E—+tF=ZA=+—H " & At 31 March 2017, the accounts receivable of $1,575,000
U BR ZR R B M B H BT AR E Y (2016: $1,575,000) was individually determined to be impaired.
BR X A&1,575,0000 (=T — /N 4F - Consequently, specific allowance for bad and doubtful debts of

1,575,0007T) ° Bt - BEHHERAR $1,575,000 (2016: $1,575,000) was recognised.

EEREFTEEEA1,575000L (- &

—7N4F 1 1,575,0007T) ©

(©) RERBENEWVIRK

() Accounts receivable that are not impaired

LB Bl S EE BB AR B R E R FE IR The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither
RHBREE DATIAE ¢ individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:
2017 2016
Fi F7
$°000 $'000
RgHIs R BRIE Neither past due nor impaired 9,257 12,676
B {E A Less than 1 month past due 1,190 1,453
BEA1 = 3{E A 1 to 3 months past due 779 19
e ER R A B (E A More than 3 months but less than
BALR12(EA 12 months past due 16 26
1,985 1,498
11,242 14,174
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B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA %555 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 K&

(c)

RERF ~ 7] & RFEMN R am
TR {EL B9 FEE W B RR (4

REHOR AR E A & W AR IS BT
R B RN EREEmES o

ERMELARERNBUIRRREER
EAREEE RS FRHERN—RIEL
BEF - BRERR  REAELR
HRNEEERYEEANE - AR
RERIEG AP 2HURE - FTAER
UL FHEREER -

15 BEMRITEFRK

73"\\:*

E’]fE

—+ER_E-RE=A=+—0H "
T EFHVE%EE#E LA — K5 E4RTT
(2 FE20) o

14

15

Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Prepayments (continued)

(c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
(Continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history

of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

Pledged Bank Deposits
At 31 March 2017 and 2016, bank deposits were pledged to a

designated bank to secure the bank loan (see note 20).

16 WERIREEEY 16 Cash and Cash Equivalents
2017 2016
Fr T
$000 $000
SRITEEIER Deposits with banks 359,184 304,246
RITFERRIRE Cash at bank and in hand 26,418 34,004
385,602 338,250
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17

18

19

Hi AR EER 17 Other Payables and Accruals
RZE—+F=A=+—8 " FrEEMER As at 31 March 2017, all of the other payables and accruals are
RREFEREN—FNEMN  c R expected to be settled within one year. As at 31 March 2016, all of
—RNE=ZA=+—H "% T732,000TTEz the other payables and accruals were expected to be settled within
BB —F18EIN - BT HM BN TR E one year except for $32,000 which was expected to be settled after
SFEAER—FRER more than one year.
2WET£ 18 Deposits Received
K T 120,204,000 ot ( — & — X F All of the deposits received are expected to be settled within one year
154,127,0007C) BE] & TBEH R BB —F 14 except for $120,204,000 (2016: $154,127,000) which is expected to
BN FTEEWET S TE R —F BT - be settled after more than one year.
RERBEESEME 19 Provision for Long Service Payments
Fr
$°000
R2016%4 418 At 1 April 2016 1,581
REFR LR Provision written back for the year (40)
FEARNK Payment made during the year (28)
7201743 A31H At 31 March 2017 1,513

REBBBCRMBIED) - NEBARK IR
hFHUENE TREMER - ERLER
THAEH—EMR - BENSREZEHRET
RENFE MRBEY  BRERARERK
BN AKEEHMER BT E - K&
B8 B B R A E AR RIS ELD
B e

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent
on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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20

IRITER — BIEHF
R-ZT—tF=A=+—8  BITEZNE
FERAE -

20 Bank Loan — Secured

At 31 March 2017, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

2017 2016
Fr Tt
$°000 $°000

1ER Within 1 year - 200,000
1F & B2 R After 1 year but within 2 years - —
2F1£B5F A After 2 years but within 5 years 200,000 —
200,000 =
200,000 200,000

RZZE—=F+A+tA  AQRHE—FHIR
1313 7 — 15 A& #£300,000,000 7T K #4 &
Wt c RZTE—AENA=1+AH &AAF
BZIRITRI . — DR - BRmESER
ER=FE-T—NFF+ANB - ZEIT
MERUN—MBEETETEE(2HK
T12(9))ME —EE/AEMRL LA TRITHE
F(2HWFE15)NEZB R NERE
AR N —+F=A=+—H KE
ERIRITE T A200,000,0007T (= F—7<4F ¢
200,000,0007T) °

RRRMIRITREBERITEARRNE T
A SRR R R AR R 514 7 2R
A - WEKREARTE—EOREKT o Wz
NAERZERH - BRBARREES
ERBAEERE - AR ETHERESE
FeEeis R-T—tFR-T—F
= A=+—H ' AARWEE R TR R
SERENRE -

On 7 October 2013, the Company entered into a facility agreement
with a bank for banking facilities of up to $300,000,000. On 30 August
2016, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement with the
bank for extension of the facilities for three years to 8 October 2019.
The banking facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a
first fixed legal charge over certain fixed assets (see note 12(g)) and
a first floating charge over certain bank deposits (see note 15). At
31 March 2017, the outstanding bank loan was $200,000,000 (2016:
$200,000,000).

The Company’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Company’s consolidated
statement of financial position ratios and maintenance of capital at
certain required levels. If the Company were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. The
Company regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. As
at 31 March 2017 and 2016, none of the covenants relating to drawn

down facilities had been breached.
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21 REHEERE 21 Obligations under Finance Leases
R-ZTB—+F=HA=+—H ' ~"EBHFE At 31 March 2017, the Group had obligations under finance leases
MERENEFRBOT repayable as follows:

2017 2016

BREHE RERE ®EHEE RIEHE
NRERE (RERE  IERE O3

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
Fr Fr T T
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
1R Within 1 year 29 29 29 29
1F&IB2FA After 1 year but within 2 years 29 29 29 29
2R BSER After 2 years but within 5 years 17 17 46 46
46 46 75 75
75 75 104 104
W ARMEX BB Less: Total future interest expense - —
HERENRE Present value of lease obligations 75 104
22 FEBUFHE 22 Government Lease Premiums Payable
RZZ—tF=A=1+—H - EFNBTHE At 31 March 2017, the government lease premiums payable was
REFEAAR - repayable as follows:
2017 2016
T T
$°000 $'000
1FR(BIEEEAERR Within 1 year (amount included in
MIEETERN) other payables and accruals) 60 57
1612825 K After 1 year but within 2 years 63 60
2F1£{B5F A After 2 years but within 5 years 208 198
5% After 5 years 1,649 1,722
1,920 1,980
1,980 2,037
FENTER T HIE T B R R AR ME & #A 5 LA FE Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
FEsE(ZT—NF : 5[E)TE - fixed rate of 5% (2016: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.
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23

BER K f#fR

(a)

i d

23 Capital and Reserves

S AR R AR 0 Y B @
AR B A 15 A0 5 (B4R FRED 5 0 28

éﬁiﬁqﬁﬂiu BHHEER - JIERNES
BER - ARARNFNEFKME

fl}”alﬁ AR R D Y B

#1575 H

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity

T between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
VNN The Company
B BEfhRE R T B
Share Revaluation Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
Fr Fx Fr Fr
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
A2015F481H Balance at 1 April 2015
B AR 360,000 1,761,266 12,083,381 14,204,647
REZ R R Profit and total comprehensive
e N income for the year — — 861,074 861,074
B F—BREE Dividends approved in respect of
HERRE the previous financial year — — (216,000) (216,000)
BRAMRFE Dividends declared in respect of
FIRAARE the current financial year — — (216,000) (216,000)
R20165F3H31H Balance at 31 March 2016
201654818 and 1 April 2016
B ER 360,000 1,761,266 12,512,455 14,633,721
rEEBER Loss and total comprehensive
2HERALTE income for the year - - (161,750) (161,750)
BR E—HMEBFE Dividends approved in respect of
HERRE the previous financial year - - (216,000) (216,000)
BRAMEREFE Dividends declared in respect of
BFIRKAZ B the current financial year - - (216,000) (216,000)
R2017%3A31H Balance at 31 March 2017
B AR 360,000 1,761,266 11,918,705 14,039,971

Annual Report 2016-2017 4 127



% BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8#® % R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23

BN W@

T

ﬂ&

23 Capital and Reserves (continued)

i (b) Share capital
2017 2016
BB Fr RnHEE Tt
Number of shares $°000 Number of shares $'000
BITRHEE :  Issued and fully paid:
LimhR Ordinary shares 360,000,000 360,000 360,000,000 360,000

RIFEBCR RGP EE136 15
AR A E E o

AN

LB A AGRBEAT R E IR AR
B WAIEARARBIAREG F8#FE —
AR DR —F - HRARRINFIRE
B AT aRE=aRSER -

BfhEENEENRE
BRI AR RREE
MEBHERBREMNEEBRY -
REECERAERES o RENE
BEEMNER  EAEBNEHRS
RS HEEEARDERF - LEE
RTAHIRH -

Al Ik

R—_TE—+F=ZA=+—8  RE
HBCARUEDI) FE6EBAREFE A A
HORFRARERRRNFEEBE
7#%1,810,707,000 7T ( =& — /X F ¢
1,789,563,0007) ° & E N EHA
MEFERRESZ > RARBARISER
0.607t(=ZZ—R% : BR0.607T) -
4 #£216,000,000 7T ( = Z — X
216,000,0007¢) (FzE10) ° ELEAR B
RIRERFERER R RERREE -

-

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company have no

nominal value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank

equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
surpluses and other properties revaluation surplus recognised
in prior years. The hotel has been redeveloped into iISQUARE.
Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties, any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to

retained earnings. The reserve is non-distributable.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, as calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $1,810,707,000
(2016: $1,789,563,000). After the end of the reporting
period the Directors proposed a final dividend of $0.60 per
share (2016: $0.60 per share), amounting to $216,000,000
(2016: $216,000,000) (note 10). This dividend has not been

recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.
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23

I

\
l

©

AR ft e o)

CN§E
AEEEREANETRZANRREAR
SEFEKCENEE N KMFES LA
Y MET E SRRk P AR O AR 7% (B
BARABEKABGREN TR
HELERIRRTERER W AEM
HHEATHH M -

AEBTFHRRFNMERELERER -
BREF AR S E KK EF
B SRR B R - BB E AR
REROBENRERGFE - LA
EEBEBEREEMBARERERS -

HE-_Z—t+tFR-_ZF—-RF=H
SH—BIEEE  ARENBERE
HeFE R o

INER B8 3 BOR PR B 7 B AR M A I
% FRBEHEEAABHEEES
MEBRRERHEERLERE - stk

T AEERATERNEELER
BT ﬂﬁ@%ﬁﬁfw & BRI &
IR ERBE R_T—+tF
$’§IE’J£$EE
HEE14%(ZT—RNF : 1.4%) -

fE TERRBSBARITERE

f 3% 320,583,000 T (=& — /—\¢ :
300,041,0007¢) °

=i

23 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher member returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2017

and 2016.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. As
at 31 March 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.4% (2016:
1.4%) with bank deposits and cash exceeding total bank loan
of $320,583,000 (2016: $300,041,000).
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24 BIEREERAALEE
AEBSEIEFESBEFEEEE
B - FIRMEERR -

mE

BREARKEPIAENRR - LRAEERNL
E IR B ) U 7 R B R R AN B H
EEAIT e

(@ EERRE
AEENEERREZEREEKE
Ko BBECEREERE AT
ETEER A MNEERR

YRR ME - HRABEERE L
BBR-—TE2BEEENTF  A5HE
SELERNEERE - ZIERPF
HEPBEEREIHMRAENTLENE
RIEEERE S Y EEREPHEER
HAEEPREMENRKERE - R
H—RESAERIE  ERERE
—RBTRETEX - BHSEEH
B AREBEEEENER THEaH
RFBEIEAREERTE - REER
REFRI (218 1EREUSER
FRHY IR o

AEEVTEEREEARETNE
o NETEMFEM M - AR
ZHEERR ERASMBHAKRSE
BeREEMNERTE(SHRRESE
) o AEBYWEEH A BAKEA
EEERBREEMER -

ERAEERBERERMELREE
E b AENEMERE - SR
BisE14 -
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 18) as

collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial position
after deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group to

credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 14.
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted

cash flows (including interest payments computed using

HEE R (0% 8) st E /T contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
,%\ N F)RAEEEZE T A end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
5|5 - be required to pay:
2017
CLES i) 15r5 RBIE BigoE
REE RENSAE  HEBRAR BHRAEF BHR5E BiB5E
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1yearbut 2 yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted 1 yearor less than less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5years 5 years
r r n i r r
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HiERZREFER  Other payables and acoruals 16,719 16,742 16,742 - - -
BlETE Deposits received 195,213 195,213 75,009 86,638 33,566 -
RETEALE Obligations under finance leases 75 75 29 29 17 -
FITEHR — HHEM Bank loan — secured 200,000 206,284 2,493 2,493 201,298 -
ENBTE Govermment lease premiums payable 1,920 3,018 - 159 477 2,382
413,927 421,332 94,273 89,319 235,358 2,382
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24 BIEREERAALEEG®E 24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)
(b) REBE SRR @ (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

2016
ANAIA 1ERH e BIES BiRoF
REE ZRenBEE HERAR  BONF ESNSE #1855

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
i it 7 7t T it
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HifEfTRESHBE  Other payables and accruals 20,398 20,422 20,390 32 = =
BETE Deposits received 204,307 204,307 50,180 69,292 84,835 -
BEHEAL Obligations under finance leases 104 104 29 29 46 -
RTER — A Bank loan — secured 200,000 201,065 201,065 - - -
[ENBFHE Government lease premiums payable 1,980 3,177 - 159 477 2,541
426,789 429,075 271,664 69,512 85,358 2,541
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24 BIERAMBEERAAEBE@m) 24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)
(c) FI=EEE (¢) Interest rate risk

AEENNXEREZRERTE
oo FRMIRITEREREBAAT
REenEr xRk AEEEEEE

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loan.
The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as

R R RPN T ()BT © monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

0 MEER (i)
TRAVRBEHRELER
AEBAAZEABERMNER
SRR R -

Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s borrowings with significant interest rate risk

exposure at the end of the reporting period:

2017 2016
BERAI= BERA =
Effective Effective
interest rate Frx interest rate FIiT
% $°000 % $'000
EEMER Fixed rate borrowings:
FERTBUAT 0B Government lease premiums
payable 5.00 1,980 5.00 2,037
FEMER Variable rate borrowings:
RITEK — HIKIH  Bank loan — secured 1.25 200,000 1.03 200,000
fakc) Total 201,980 202,037
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)

(©

(d)

Associated International Hotels Limited S)\EEIFEEA R A T

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 (2016: 25) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s loss after
tax and decreased/increased the retained profits by
approximately $835,000 (2016: decreased/increased
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by

approximately $418,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax (2016: profit after
tax) (and retained profits) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s loss
after tax (2016: profit after tax) (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2016.

Currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as

substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.
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26

Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$30,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $30,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $40,000. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest immediately
while voluntary contributions to the plan vest at the time the
employees reach the retirement range, subject to certain conditions.
The staff costs in respect of staff employed by DTZ for building and
property management of iISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

During the year, no forfeited contributions (2016: $58,000) were
utilised to reduce the contributions payable for the year. Unutilised
forfeited contributions of $1,000 (2016: Nil) had yet to be applied by
the Group at 31 March 2017.

Commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2017 not provided for

in the financial statements were as follows:

2017 2016

T Tt

$'000 $'000

EEES Contracted for 611 =
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27 R—E—t&E=H=+—H 27 Company-level Statement of Financial

1£ 77 B = E W B RS AR R 3R Position at 31 March 2017
2017 2016
BfaE T T
Note $°000 $°000
FREBEE Non-current assets
BEE&E Fixed assets
— REME — Investment properties 13,918,470 14,533,230
— EtbZE - BE ME&E — Other properties, plant and equipment 71,966 78,407
13,990,436 14,611,637
i LlENGI oL Interest in subsidiaries 31,084 31,084
14,021,520 14,642,721
REBEE Current assets
FEUERSK - B]& RIEHI K Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments 21,510 20,561
B IRRITFK Pledged bank deposits 134,981 161,791
ReRBELZEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 385,081 337,125
541,572 519,477
REBEE Current liabilities
IRITER — BHEA Bank loan — secured - 200,000
HiER R R EER Other payables and accruals 16,693 20,047
BUGET£ Deposits received 193,732 202,826
REARTG & %M Provision for long service payments 1,513 1,581
FE(SHIB A RIZkIE Amount due to a subsidiary 27,482 24,482
RIE T EAE Obligations under finance leases 29 29
RNEAREAS PTSHR Current tax payable 19,775 23,015
259,224 471,980
REBEEFE Net current assets 282,348 47,497
EEABERABER Total assets less current liabilities 14,303,868 14,690,218
FEREBARE Non-current liabilities
RITER — BEM Bank loan — secured 200,000 —
FERTE T (B Government lease premiums payable 1,920 1,980
RhE S A Obligations under finance leases 46 75
FEEFRIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 61,931 54,442
263,897 56,497
BEFE NET ASSETS 14,039,971 14,633,721
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27

Company-level Statement of Financial
Position at 31 March 2017 continued)

2017 2016
g Fr T
Note $°000 $'000

GAREE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23
%N Share capital 23(b) 360,000 360,000
b Reserves 13,679,971 14,273,721
R TOTAL EQUITY 14,039,971 14,633,721

EFeN _ZE—+tF A+ /\ B ELHF Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

EZE EE
EEE EEH

HESQARNMREEZEES

EZEgRA AKER-_F—tF=A
=+ ANEERBARRKKEETDRR
RIEWERRARMKEERAR  MRA
BIETBEMKIL - EERBRARSRET
RO HRE - RREET ARG RE
A AP B®RE o

28

28 June 2017.

Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim

Director Director

Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling
Party

At 31 March 2017, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Land Limited
and Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited respectively, both
of which are incorporated in Hong Kong. The immediate parent
produces financial statements available for public use and the ultimate
controlling party does not produce financial statements available for

public use.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA %555 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29

CEAEEBRE-Z—tF
:H:+—E¢$fﬁ*$
MEVEET ~ FER MR
Q=3-7 -
%§$W%ﬁ%¥ﬁ5ﬂv§%@%%“
BB YENAERE-F L5 = F
=t LR TR AR
FAMETAINER - BB CBET
SRR A I -

29 Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and Interpretations Issued
But Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended
31 March 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2017 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the following

which may be relevant to the Group.

EUT Az %
BRI ST EA R A K
Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BREFERDETRMERIRERER + W

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

(BEE:
HEER A A E |

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets

for unrealised losses

(EEMEHREER
HKFRS 9 (2014), Financial instruments

(BBUBRELERDFEAST BE ST LA FHKA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(CEBPHmEELDFE 165 HE
HKFRS 16, Leases

Al

I)505% (20144 ) £ R T A |

201751 HA18
1 January 2017

20171 A1H

1 January 2017

2018F1H1H

1 January 2018

201851 H18
1 January 2018

201951 H1H
1 January 2019

RGN ERIE AR S M HRE
RERFZEHAREETK -

The adoption of these amendments and new standards is unlikely to

have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Five Year Financial Summary
(LB % 35|;R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ES Results
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Tt T Tt FIT T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
WA Revenue 518,878 606,262 644,984 667,214 661,677
REWEME Profit/(loss) from operations
SBEBENEE after valuation changes in
R (E58) investment properties 2,804,669 1,468,260 1,380,284 964,731 (65,928)
BEMKA Finance costs (2,257) (3,048) (2,398) (2,458) (3,374)
BREADER,(B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,802,412 1,465,212 1,377,886 962,273 (69,302)
FHaR: Income tax (68,832) (82,914) (87,507) (90,904) (89,813)
DNEEERER Profit/(loss) for the year
FEEAREE attributable to equity
R (E8) shareholders of the Company 2,733,580 1,382,298 1,290,379 871,369 (159,115)
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EFMEBE Five Year Financial Summary
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEREE Assets and Liabilities
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
T T T T 7
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000
EEE Fixed assets 12,526,082 13,469,346 14,318,237 14,724,637 14,103,436
mEN(BE), BEFE Netcurrent (iabilties)/assets (36,289) 213,755 230,725 71,289 308,792

12,489,793 13,683,101 14,648,962 14,795,926 14,412,228

SRITER — B Bank loan — secured = (200,000) (200,000) = (200,000)
FERTBUN HE(E Government lease premiums

payable (2,143) (2,091) (2,037) (1,980) (1,920)
BT E AR Obligations under finance leases (38) @ (104) (75) (46)
EIETIEAE Deferred tax liabilities (32,579) (39,675) 47,111) (54,792) (62,298)
BEFE NET ASSETS 12,455,033 13,441,331 14,299,710 14,739,079 14,147,964
[ Share capital 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
5 Reserves 12,095,033 13,081,331 13,939,710 14,379,079 13,787,964
B TOTAL EQUITY 12,455,033  13,441331 14,299,710 14,739,079 14,147,964
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